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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to jts accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Winson Holdings
Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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REGISTERED OFFICE
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Cayman Islands
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Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
16th Floor, The Centre

99 Queen’s Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

United Overseas Bank Limited
23/F, 3 Garden Road

Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
25/F, Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS TO THE COMPANY

As to Hong Kong Law
Cheung & Choy

Rms 417-418, 4/F
Hutchison House

10 Harcourt Road
Central

Hong Kong

As to Cayman Islands Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Messis Capital Limited

A licensed corporation to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities) and
type 6 (advising on corporate finance) requlated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance

Room 1606, 16/F

Tower 2, Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
A 755 4 22

Year ended 31 March
HZEZ3AMALEE

2017
2017 &

(HK$ million)
(BEB®BTT)

2016

20164
(HK$ million)
(AEATT)

Percentage
Change

B 5 b 8

Revenue U z5 467.5 449.8 +3.9%
Gross Profit EF 67.3 68.5 -1.7%
Profit for the year F A F 8.7 18.8 -53.9%
Total Assets 8B E 195.4 139.4 +40.2%
Total Equity =B 91.6 28.8 +218.6%
Key Financial Ratios FTEBBHLER

Gross profit margin E F & 14.4% 15.2%

Net profit margin i Al R 1.9% 4.2%

Return on equity % 7N [2] £ = 9.5% 65.4%

Return on total assets 48 & O] ¥y R 4.4% 13.5%

Interest coverage ratio T BB~ =R (R ERE 111 times =

Current ratio B & 1.7 times {Z 1.0 times 1%

Quick ratio RE X 1.7 times {Z 1.0 times &

Gearing ratio BERBEHX 0.4 times 12 1.9 times &
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
EV a0

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

As the first annual results since our listing on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 16 March
2017, the milestone provides fitting tribute to a year of steady growth
and development by the Group. Over the past 12 months, our primary
business activities, namely Environmental Hygiene Services and Airline
Catering Support Services have continued to perform favourably,
combined revenue from the two businesses rose by 3.9% year on
year to HK$467.5 million. However, in the face of greater labour cost
pressure, gross profit declined modestly to HK$67.3 million (FY2016:
HK$68.5 million) for the year ended 31 March 2017.

With over three decades worth of experience in environmental
hygiene services, and longstanding ties with reputable customers
including a leading property developer and mass transit railway
operator that stretch over 20 years, we have established a reputation
for effectively managing large-scale projects and meeting the most
stringent customer requirements. This reputation for excellence,
which the “Winson” brand is synonymous with, combined with a
highly qualified management team that possesses perfect foresight,
enabled us to seamlessly enter the airline catering support service
sector back in 2013. During the year under review, we have continued
to leverage all of our strengths to solidify our leading positions in the
environmental hygiene service and airline catering support service
industries.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Environmental hygiene services contributed revenue of HK$432.6
million and remained the principal revenue contributor of the Group.
Being a labour-intensive industry, the environmental hygiene services
business performed favourably with gross profit slightly improved to
HK$62.3 million (FY2016: HK$62.2 million) for the year despite the
increase in labour cost owing to our ability to consistently provide
high-quality service to property owners and management companies
of landmark commercial buildings and residential premises and the
Hong Kong Government.
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CHAIRPERSON'’S STATEMENT
e o

With respect to the airline catering support services business, the
operation is a reflection of our commitment to developing additional
revenue streams by capitalising on our existing environmental hygiene
services clients. In addressing the needs of Hong Kong-based airline
catering providers and conglomerates, the business recorded revenue
of HK$34.9 million (FY2016: HK$34.5 million) and gross profit of
HK$5.0 million (FY2016: HK$6.2 million) for the year.

PROSPECTS

Going forward, we are cautiously optimistic about the prospects of
the environmental hygiene services and airline catering support
services businesses despite persistent labour cost pressure. We will
duly employ measures to mitigate such pressure while at the same
time seek to raise the efficiency of all facets of the Group. In
particular, we will direct efforts towards bolstering the performance
of our two operations by increasing penetration in the respective
markets. Also, given that superior service has been the hallmark of
the Group, we will leverage this attribute to move towards premium
market segments. Though exceptional service is demanded, higher
profit can be achieved.

APPRECIATION

I ' would like to take this opportunity to thank the management team
and the entire Winson workforce for their hard work and dedication
during this milestone year. | wish to also express my gratitude to the
many longstanding customers, all of whom have been integral to our
success. Last but not least, | would like to offer my appreciation to all
of our shareholders for their support.

By Order of the Board

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 7 June 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CENCEE &

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded a total revenue of HK$467.5 million (FY2016:
HK$449.8 million) for the year ended 31 March 2017. In the face of
rising cost of labour, the Group managed to achieve stable gross
profit at HK$67.3 million (FY2016: HK$68.5 million), while the gross
profit margin of 14.4% only recorded a slight decrease (FY2016:
15.2%). Profit for the year amounted to HK$8.7 million as against
HK$18.8 million for last year, while net profit margin reached 1.9%.
If taking out the listing expenses, net profit margin would be 4.1%
(FY2016: 4.2% and approximately 5.0% excluding listing expenses).
The Group remained in a healthy financial position, with cash and
cash equivalents of HK$71.4 million.

BUSINESS SEGMENT ANALYSIS

Environmental Hygiene Services

The Group provides environmental hygiene services and its services
include public area and office cleaning, waste disposal, as well as
specialised services such as external curtain wall and window cleaning,
marble floor maintenance and restoration and pest management
services.

Environmental hygiene services remained the principal revenue
contributor of the Group, generating revenue of HK$432.6 million
(FY2016: HK$415.3 million) and accounting for 92.5% of total
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017 (FY2016: 92.3%). Gross
profit of HK$62.3 million was recorded as against HK$62.2 million for
last year, with gross profit margin at 14.4% (FY2016: 15.0%). As at
31 March 2017, the estimated total value of the Group’s contracts in
hand was approximately HK$772.6 million, of which HK$356.1
million was ongoing contracts. Furthermore, the Group had won 112
new contracts worth approximately HK$358.2 million in aggregate.

The environmental hygiene services industry is highly fragmented, the
majority of which are small in scale with less than 50 workers and
have limited scope of services. In contrast, the Group is one of the top
ten service providers in Hong Kong — ranked 6th' in 2015 with 3.8%'
market share based on revenue; possesses diverse expertise; and has
approximately 2,500 full-time and part-time staff serving well over
800 customers, comprising owners and management companies, a
mass transit transportation operator and the Hong Kong Government.

1 Source: Frost & Sullivan Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CEVEF VY

Leveraging a history that stretches over 34 years, a respected brand in
the name of “Winson”, a highly experienced management team and
a dedicated workforce, the Group has continued to expand its scope
of services, bolster its client base and deliver ever higher quality
services. In the past year, revenue has risen principally due to
customers of office and commercial centres. It has also attracted
clients from both the public and private sectors, the former comprise
municipal services buildings, while the latter include the management
of shopping malls located in the central business district. However,
with rising statutory minimum wage and being labour intensive
industry, the Group's profit has been impacted. Nevertheless, the
management has remained resolute in controlling labour and other
costs so as to maintain the Group’s competitiveness and bolster its
market position.

Airline Catering Support Services

Leverage the Group’s existing client base, the management has been
exploring new business opportunities and extending the service from
environmental hygiene services to airline catering support services
since 2013. Since then, the airline catering support services business
continued to develop favourably during the year under review, with
revenue rising by 1.2% year on year to HK$34.9 million (FY2016:
HK$34.5 million) and thus accounting for 7.5% (FY2016: 7.7%) of
total revenue of the Group. Gross profit of HK$5.0 million was
recorded against HK$6.2 million reported last year, with gross profit
margin hovering at 14.2% (FY2016: 18%,).

As at 31 March 2017, the estimated total value of the Group’s
contracts in hand amounted to approximately HK$66.7 million, of
which HK$50.0 million was ongoing contracts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B S B g3 B

PROSPECTS

Going forward, the management is cautiously optimistic about the
development of the Group’s two business segments. Such an outlook
is based on its awareness of public concerns for environmental
hygiene. Furthermore, a healthy tourism industry and the increase in
local and international firms establishing offices in Hong Kong are also
factors that will continue to stimulate demand for high-quality
hygiene services. In respect of airline catering support services,
demand will be driven by steadily rising passenger volume as domestic
residents continue to willingly spend more of their income on leisure
travel. In addition, with fierce competition in the civil aviation industry,
airlines are placing greater focus on in-flight services to achieve
market differentiation, which includes providing quality catering.

The Group will seek to capitalise on the aforementioned developments
by fully exploiting its competitive edges of strong leadership,
longstanding business ties, rich history, renowned brand name and
exceptional workforce. It will also prudently use the financial resources
generated from its GEM listing for increasing penetration of the
environmental hygiene and airline catering industries, including
through greater promotion of the Winson brand. Furthermore, the
management will allocate resources for enhancing the Group
information technology system so as to raise service quality and
strengthen operational efficiency, the latter being particular relevant
in view of labour cost pressure that is expected to persist in the
foreseeable future.

The management is committed to providing end-to-end services that
encourage further bolstering of ties with its customers — entering
preferred vendor lists — and facilitate consolidation in relevant
markets. In addition, it will capitalise on its quality services to move
towards premium market segments where it can generate greater
profits. Also, now being a listed company, the Group will strive to
deliver favourable returns to shareholders through responsible
management and effectual expansion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CEVEF VY

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31
March 2017 was approximately HK$449.8 million and HK$467.5
million respectively, representing an increase of approximately 4%
which mainly due to increase of additional contracts. The Group's
tender success rate for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
approximately 23.4% as compared to approximately 24.1% for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

Cost of Services

For the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017, the cost of
services of the Group amounted to approximately HK$381.3 million
and HK$400.2 million respectively, representing approximately 84.8%
and 85.6% of the Group’s revenue for the corresponding years. The
Group's cost of services comprised direct wages, consumables and
sub-contracting fees. The slightly increase of cost of services in
proportion to the Group’s revenue was mainly due to increase in
direct wages due to tight labour market and increase in sub-
contracting fees.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group's gross profit slightly decreased by approximately HK$1.1
million from approximately HK$68.5 million for the year ended 31
March 2016 to approximately HK$67.3 million for the year ended 31
March 2017. The gross profit margin for the years ended 31 March
2016 and 31 March 2017 was approximately 15.2% and 14.4%
respectively. As mentioned above, the decrease was mainly due to
increase in direct wages and sub-contracting fees.

General Operating Expenses

The general operating expenses increased by approximately HK$2.4
million, or approximately 6% to HK$42.1 million for the year ended
31 March 2017, as compared with approximately HK$39.7 million for
the year ended 31 March 2016. Such increase was mainly due to
increase of salaries and allowances expenses.

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group was approximately HK$2.3 million and
HK$2.4 million for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March
2017 respectively, representing approximately 0.5% of the Group’s
revenue of both years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017.
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Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Attributable to Owners of the Company

Based on the aforesaid, the Group’s profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to owners of the Company for each of the years
ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 was approximately
HK$18.8 million and HK$8.7 million respectively, representing of
approximately 4.2% and 1.9% of the respective year’s total revenue.
By excluding listing expenses, the Group’s profit attributable to
owners of the Company would be approximately HK$19.1 million for
the year ended 31 March 2017 (FY2016: approximately HK$22.5
million).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2017, the Group's total current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$159.7 million (31 March 2016:
HK$102.1 million) and HK$94.4 million (31 March 2016: HK$102.0
million) respectively, while the current ratio was approximately 1.7
times (31 March 2016: approximately 1.0 times).

The Group had total assets of approximately HK$195.4 million which
is financed by total liabilities and total equity of approximately
HK$103.8 million and HK$91.6 million respectively. As at 31 March
2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$71.4 million (31 March 2016: approximately HK$22.4 million).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has aggregate banking facilities of
approximately HK$116.2 million. The Group's gearing ratio was 0.43
times as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: 1.92 times), which was
calculated based on the total bank borrowings over total equity of the
Group.

There was no change to the Group’s capital structure since the listing
(the "Listing”) of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) on GEM,
being 16 March 2017 (the “Listing Date”), and up to 31 March 2017.
As at 31 March 2017, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$6,000,000 divided into 600,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

Capital Expenditure

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group's capital
expenditure which mainly included purchase of motor vehicle and
equipment amounted to approximately HK$1.9 million (FY2016:
HK$2.4 million). These capital expenditures were funded by funds
generated from our operating activities.
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EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had 2,500 (31 March 2016: 2,565)
employees. The Group enters into separate employment contracts
with each of the Group’s employees in accordance with the applicable
employment laws in Hong Kong. The remuneration package includes
basic salary, bonuses and other cash allowances or subsidies. The
Group conducts annual review on salary, bonuses and promotions
based on the performance of each employee. The total staff costs and
related expenses (including directors’ remuneration) for the year
ended 31 March 2017 were approximately HK$312.9 million,
representing a slight increase of approximately 0.6% or approximately
HK$2.0 million as compared with approximately HK$310.9 million for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

Apart from basic remuneration, share options have been granted
under the pre-IPO share option scheme to recognise the contribution
to the Group by an executive Director and certain employees of the
members of the Group. Further share options may be granted under
share option scheme to attract and retain the best available personnel,
provide additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), as
well as promote the success of the business of the Group.

In order to provide quality services to customers, the Group provides
on-going training regularly to relevant staff across different
departments with topics including but not limited to information
technology, environmental protection, ISO training, safety training as
well as trainings for supervisory roles, etc. Such trainings are either
provided internally or by external parties.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since the Group generated most of the revenue and incurred most of
the costs in Hong Kong dollars for the year ended 31 March 2017,
there was no significant exposure to foreign exchange rate and the
Group did not maintain any hedging policy against foreign exchange
risk. The management will consider hedging significant currency
exposure should the need arise.

B - 355 52 3 B BUR

M20179F3H31H » "&EEH2,5004 (2016
F3A31H :2565%) B - AEBIRESR
BERBERBENEANEESEEES HAE]
VERBREH -FTWEBEREELRHE LA
REAMBSEMKFM AEERESE
ENRBHEFE LANMBEAETFER
e B E2017F3A3IBIEFEHNB IRA
MR BE(BEESHFMN N R3129
BEBT BEHZE2016%F3A31H IEFEW
4931095 & 75 J0 8L 1 AN 490.6% 3K £72.0
AEAT

BRERFMIN NREBEREERLHE
ERNBREFERLIBEREASE — 28
TEERAEEXRERATANE TEERAK
SEELONER YA RIEBRES
BREHEZBEREARSIREEEFITRA
F o REBR (2B EFRREB)REREINNME
WS AKEEBERI

RARFREEERSE AKBETHRT
FIAFI AR B TIRES BT AN R ER
Al BREEATRNEMB R RERE
SO Z 2T REEREEINIS -5
A5 B R R Sk N SRR 4

S BE = B

MR AEBEZ2017F3A31B IEFEEFR
EE RO UG M KBS D A LB L E
B HITEAREAINERR  MAEET
ERINERBRE EEREFRE - BEE
BEREERERYPTERNEERR -

>
Z
Z
c
>
[l
~
m
)
©
a
N
(=4
—
N
N
(=}
[y
<]
i
il
E




14

[0 373 B E W H(K AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
W HLJE W B oy B

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The contingent liabilities of the Group is the exposure of the fine from
the actual use of the leasehold land and buildings does not comply
with the permitted use and breach of section 25(1) of the Buildings
Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for failure to
notify the Building Department regarding the change of land use. As
at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017, pursuant to section 40(2) of
the Buildings Ordinance, the maximum exposure of the fine is
approximately to HK$0.1 million.

CHARGE OVER GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, approximately HK$23.1 million of trade
receivables were assigned and charged for secured the banking
facilities (31 March 2016: HK$22.0 million).

The Group's leasehold land and buildings of carrying value of
approximately HK$30.2 million as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016:
HK$31.2 million), were pledged to secure the bank loan.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$0.2 million (31 March 2016: nil) in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment authorised but not
contracted for.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as the reorganisation as disclosed in the prospectus of the
Company dated 28 February 2017 (the “Prospectus”), the Group did
not have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31 March 2017.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any significant investment held as at 31
March 2017.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have other
plans for material investments or capital assets as of 31 March 2017.

USE OF PROCEEDS AND COMPARISON OF
BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS
PROGRESS

The net proceeds from the Listing on the Listing Date was
approximately HK$40.1 million, after deducting listing related
expenses. The actual net proceeds from the listing was different
from the estimated net proceeds of approximately HK$45.5 million
as set out in the Prospectus and approximately HK$41.3 million
as set out in the announcement of the Company in relation to
the allotment results dated 15 March 2017 (the “Allotment Results
Announcement”).

The Group adjusted the use of proceeds in the same manner and in
the same proportion as shown in the Allotment Results
Announcement, which is (i) approximately 45% of the net proceeds,
representing approximately HK$18.1 million for strengthening the
Group's available financial resources to finance cash flow mismatch
under the tender contracts, (i) approximately 7% of the net proceeds,
representing approximately HK$2.8 million for increasing the market
penetration by strengthen the promotion of the Group’s brand, (iii)
approximately 19% of the net proceeds, representing approximately
HK$7.6 million for strengthening the established position in the
environmental services industry in Hong Kong, (iv) approximately 19%
of the net proceeds, representing approximately HK$7.6 million for
enhancing the information technology system to strengthen
operational efficiency and service qualities, (v) approximately 10% of
the net proceeds, representing HK$4.0 million for the use as general
working capital of the Group. As of 31 March 2017, the Company
was carrying out preliminary work for the implementation of its
business objectives and strategies as disclosed in the Prospectus. The
Group will strive to achieve the milestone events as stated in the
Prospectus.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognise the importance of good corporate governance
in management and internal procedures so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
("CG Code") contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules as
its own code of corporate governance.

Save for the deviation of code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as
described in the paragraph headed “Chairperson and Chief Executive
Officer” below, the Board considers that, the Company has complied,
to the extent applicable and permissible, with the code provisions as
set out in the CG Code during the period under review (i.e. from the
Listing Date up to 31 March 2017) (the "“Period Under Review").

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its code of conduct
for securities transactions by Directors. The Directors are reminded of
their obligations under the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules on a regular basis. The
Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors, and all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
during the Period Under Review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, gives
direction and make decisions on the Group’s strategies, policies,
business plan and financial budget and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. In addition, to oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The Board
has delegated to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference. Further details of the Board
committees are set out in this report.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine members,
consisting of four executive Directors, and five independent non-
executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen

Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung

Mr. Wong Yat Sum

Mr. Chan Chun Sing

From the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report, there was
no change in the composition of the Board.

Each Director has relevant experience, competence and skills
appropriate to the business requirements of the Company. The
biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 42 to 46 of
this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” that Madam Ng Sing Mui is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan
Nei and Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the sister of Mr. Sze
Wai Lun, the Board members do not have any financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships among themselves.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Board consisted of five independent non-executive
Directors during the Period Under Review, with three independent
non-executive Directors possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. During the Period Under Review and as of the date of this
report, the number of independent non-executive Directors represents
more than one-third of the Board as required under the GEM Listing
Rules. As such, there is a strong independent element in the Board to
provide independent judgement.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their
independence and concluded that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years with effect from the Listing Date unless terminated by not less
than three months written notice to the other party or otherwise in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment. Each of such
appointments is subject to the rotation and retirement provisions in
the articles of association of the Company.

CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the responsibilities
between the chairperson and chief executive officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same individual.
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Up to the date of this report, the Company has not appointed a chief
executive officer and the role and functions of chief executive officer
have been performed by all the executive Directors, including Madam
Ng Sing Mui, the Chairperson and an executive Director, collectively.
The Board considered that this has the advantages of allowing
contributions from all executive Directors with different expertise and
will review the current situation from time to time and shall make
necessary arrangements when the Board considers appropriate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted on 13 March 2017 a board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effectiveness of its Board by maintaining the highest standards of
corporate governance and recognizing and embracing the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. The Company sees diversity as a wide
concept and believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including skills, regional
and industry experience, cultural and educational background, race,
age, gender and other qualities etc. In forming its perspectives on
diversity, the Company will also take into account factors based on its
own business model and specific needs and disclose the rationale for
the factors it uses for such purpose from time to time. The Board will
give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy when it
identifies suitably qualified candidates to become members of the
Board and will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis and
make such revisions as may be required to ensure its continuing
effectiveness.

BOARD MEETINGS

Prior to the Listing, the Board had held meetings to approve the
matters of the Company, in particular, those relating to the Listing.
During the Period Under Review, which covered a short period of less
than three weeks, no Board meeting has been held.

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular board meetings to provide
all Directors with an opportunity to attend and propose matters to be
discussed in the meeting agenda.
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For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice
will generally be given. The agenda and accompanying documents are
dispatched to the Directors or Board committee members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient
time to review the documents and be adequately prepared for the
meetings.

When Directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairperson prior to
the meeting. Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee
meetings will be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters
considered by the Board and the Board committee and the decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each Board meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to
the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date on
which the meeting is held.

GENERAL MEETING

No general meeting has been held by the Company during the Period
Under Review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 21 February 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chung Koon Yan, Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen,
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung and Mr. Chan Chun Sing with Mr. Chung Koon
Yan being the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to review, in draft form, the annual report and accounts, half-year
report and quarterly reports and to provide advice and comments to
the Board. In this regard, members of the Audit Committee will liaise
with the Board, the senior management and auditors. The Audit
Committee will also consider any significant or unusual items that are,
or may need to be, reflected in such reports and accounts and give
consideration to any matters that have been raised by the accounting
staff, compliance officer or auditors. Members of the Audit
Committee are also responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management systems and
corporate governance.

RHMEFEREFZEEEAME - X
RA—REFLBEEBN - FERBEBX
HEREZARMELIRFTETEETRE
ZZEERE UBRREFEARHMEE
BMBERXHERESEHHESS -

MEFHEFTZBERBEREHLFER
AIREEREETETIRNETERRERA
M ARENEIREREZER - EFQ
ERENEFZREER I ERLEB g
B UHAZEFEREFZEBEMZE
BOEERMERNRE BEREFRE
MEMHEE SEFTERREFERES
ERLERCBREHAKRERETER
BeRERHEATEARSES UHESE
RHEBR -

BRRKE

REBEHEAR ARRLEBITRRRS -

BEREES

ARAFIER217F2A21BK YU BEZZL B
g UWREMCEERTAGEEEEmBE
HE BZLZECHNBBELIFRNTES
MRk BNEIEAE LA REBR AL FE®R
EERBIRELE BBEREERERZE
BEXR-

ERZEENIEZERAEAR(HPEREE
BMEHRLER THRENFTEREESR
A VREFSRHEZLER 5L
FOEBERZZBEENBEHEFTE AMEHRE
ERZHBOBE BEXZBEQTHERE
MEXARINZERERKBENERL
F®RIER YEEBEFAEEFAE - ARE
THIRBEMBELNER - ERZEEKE
MEERSAEENYHAREF A
ERELEAREERGREEER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
oE FERE A

No Audit Committee’s meeting has been held during the Period
Under Review.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 and is of
the opinion that such consolidated financial statements complied with
the applicable accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules, other
applicable legal requirements and that adequate disclosures have
been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 21
February 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr.
Chung Koon Yan and one executive Director, namely Ms. Sze Tan Nei
with  Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen being the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration policies and structure of the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and to set up a formal and
transparent procedure for determination of such remuneration
policies.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make recommendations to the
Board on remuneration packages of the Directors and the members
of senior management.

No Remuneration Committee’s meeting has been held during the
Period Under Review.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director,
namely Madam Ng Sing Mui and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Ma Kwok Keung
and Mr. Wong Yat Sum with Madam Ng Sing Mui being the
chairperson of the Nomination Committee.
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Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors. In
assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee will take
into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

No Nomination Committee’s meeting has been held during the Period
Under Review.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. All
Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and have exercised their duties with
care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group.
All Board members received an induction package covering the
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The Company
also plans to provide briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Company
continuously updates the Directors on the latest developments
regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory and
statutory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
March 2017 to the Company. Training record of each Director
received for the year ended 31 March 2017 is summarised below:

Name of Directors

EEpE

Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) REEN (E/E)
Sze Tan Nei iR

Ang Ming Wah HLBREE

Sze Wai Lun e (2 f

Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RIF K
Chung Koon Yan i1

Ma Kwok Keung 5 Bl o

Wong Yat Sum = — D
Chan Chun Sing PR % 22
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Notes:

A attending seminars and/or conference and/or forums on subjects relating to A HE T EAEHEEHENDET A2
directors’ duties and corporate governance el SeHmk/ HERHEe

B reading newspaper, journals and updates as regards legal and regulatory B MEEHEFEZREREDREHEEM

changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their BITRAEZHRE  HTERKHEA
duties
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EERSREEREN M
EMOLUMENTS
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The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors) of &, Z2017F3A31B I EE A QAT SHE
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2017, by band is set out 12 B (B L& F) &9 37 Bl 3% & Bl &6 & = 5 a0
below: T~

Remuneration Band Number of individuals
3 B & AB
Nil = =
HK$1 to HK$ 1,000,000 17 751,000,000 7T 8
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 751,500,000 7% 7T =
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 75 —2,000,000 7% 7T =
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 752,500,000 7 7T 2
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T.—3,000,000 % 7T, =
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7% 7T.—3,500,000 7% 7T, 1

11

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS f% R R

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on ERRERBEARRFH XS
requisition by Shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for ARFRBRRER ARG SRR LEFE 2HNE
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual BREHFEEE - ARFREBFET —RKREE
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year andatthe FAE HHHEFSET - FERRERARE
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, (B RIEBE K&k IM) fE# M A BR B K
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary & °

general meeting.
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Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. The aforesaid written requisition should be deposited to
the Board or the company secretary of the Company at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit Nos. 1, 2,
3, 5,6, 7 and 8, 10th Floor, One Midtown, No. 11 Hoi Shing Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at General Meetings

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, there are no provisions allowing
Shareholders to propose new resolutions at the general meetings
under the articles of association of the Company or the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, as amended, modified and supplemented.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such
written requisition. The written requisition must state the objects of
the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant Shareholder(s) and
deposited to the Board or the company secretary of the Company at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit Nos. 1,
2,3,5,6,7and 8, 10th Floor, One Midtown, No. 11 Hoi Shing Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company
by post at Unit Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7 and 8, 10th Floor, One Midtown,
No. 11 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, or
via email at the contact information as provided on the website of the
Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change in the articles of association since the
Listing Date and up-to-date version of the articles of association of
the Company is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board’s Responsibilities for the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and oversees such systems
on an ongoing basis, while ensuring a review of the effectiveness of
these systems of the Group is conducted at least annually. The scope
of such review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are designed to managing risks rather
than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities)
of risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, and
management has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee (and
the Board) on the effectiveness of these systems for the year ended
31 March 2017.

Main Features of the Risk Management System

The Company recognises that good risk management is essential for
the long-term and sustainable growth of a business. The Group's risk
management structure and the major responsibilities of each role of
the structure are summarized below:

Board

\ 4
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Role Major Responsibilities At TERE

Board — determines the business strategies and =& — BTEAEEREBERRHE

Audit Committee

[0 373 B E W H(K AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

objectives of the Group, and evaluates and
determines the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives;

oversees management in the design,
implement and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems;

oversees the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis
and ensures the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems;

reviews the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems at
least annually, and such review should cover all
material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

reviews the emerging risks of the Group
annually, and the risk management and the
internal controls in place to address those risks;

discusses the risk management and internal
control systems with management of the
Group to ensure that the management of the
Group has performed its duty to have an
effective systems. The discussion should include
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function and to rectify any
weaknesses that may be revealed from time to
time;
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Management —

Risk Owners —

considers major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative
and the Group’s management’s response to
these findings;

implements any remedial plans recommended
by the management should there be any
internal control deficiencies;

designs, implements and ongoing assesses the
Group's risk management and internal control
systems;

gives prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board, on
Audit Committee’s initiative or raised by the
external risk management and internal control
review advisor(s);

provides confirmation to the Board and the
Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems;

ultimately accountable for ensuring the risk is
managed appropriately;

responsible for, or oversight of, activities to
manage each identified risk.

In addition, the Company engaged enterprise risk management
advisor to conduct a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management system for the year ended 31 March 2017.
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Main Features of the Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables
the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The components of the framework
are shown as follow:

Control — a set of standards, processes and structures
Environment that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

Risk Assessment — a dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed.

Control Activities — actions established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives
are carried out.

Information and  — internal and external communication to provide
Communication the Group with the information needed to
carry out day-to-day controls.

Monitoring — ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control
is present and functioning.

Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

Identification — identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

Evaluation — analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and

evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management — consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication with the Board in respect of
the risks and on-going monitor the residual
risks.
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Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems and to
Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are
submitted to the Audit Committee and the Board annually. The
Board, through the Audit Committee, had performed a review on the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems, including, but not limited to, (i) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control
systems, (ii) the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the Audit Committee and the Board which enables them to
assess control of the Company and the effectiveness of risk
management, (iii) significant control failings or weaknesses that have
been identified, and (iv) the effectiveness of the Company’s processes
for financial reporting and GEM Listing Rules compliance, and
concluded that the risk management and internal control systems
were effective and adequate for the year ended 31 March 2017. No
significant areas of concern that might affect the financial,
operational, compliance controls, and risk management functions of
the Group were identified. The scope of such review covers the
adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of the
Group's accounting and financial reporting functions and their
attitude against internal control of the Group.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling
and Dissemination of Inside Information

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

— access of inside information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.

— transmission of inside information in electronic form should be
password-protected.

—  prohibit employees to discuss inside information in public area.
— code names are assigned to confidential projects so that any

reference to them would not be linked to the projects
themselves to minimize possibilities of unintentional leakage.

EMRAREERAMPEZRG RE
REANBEZRBEAEANREF

bR T fh sk kA B BE 2 B ge8F
h TEREZEEREEFE - i%ﬁaﬁ
Lﬁﬁia HASEBEMNRABRERE KA

CRAGNAERMETEN AP 8ER
W@#O*@FHH 2 N A BB BS R R AT Y
BEERNHERER (INEZZES
&i%AEﬁﬁ$%%WEﬁ%%%%m
RNATIHEEE R B E IR A SUE) B & E
RBEE (B #AI M EREERBEXT R
RWWARBI B EREREFEREREIZE
REMBRIGHBRL WRBEE20174F
SA3ELEFE BEREBLAIMET RS
%ﬁﬁﬂ%ioﬁﬁﬁmTﬁé%%$ﬁ
B Ee AHBEEREREEB
EAREYES - m@%%mflmﬁéﬁ
MRl AEEeT kY BBHERES
THEREEBRURBESHAEENRKE
EEVIRRESE o

EERZBMANFHEENREFN A
EEEE

BNERAEEERANEEEN R ER
EARAPENEEE  EEE TEEEK
B AEBEPRATEE —ENEHE
BEREF AEEETHEMNETEE
B ERTEEEREUNG LEREH
AEEMNEERE  ERR1E:

— ELBRERAURFEERARTES -
— 15} K ETHANARBEBALETN

— ZFUIBEERARGEITRABHEE -

— HRFEERENRFEE FEREM
IEEETTE&§|EE§IEE$% F£ (K
\\\\\\ ERTEMAIEME -

>
Z
Z
c
>
[l
~
m
)
o
a
N
(=4
—
N
N
(=}
[y
<]
i
il
E




30

10373 8 B HE AILIWIT DNOM DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
oE FERE A

— trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with
reasonable care.

— confidentiality agreements are in place before the Group enters
into significant negotiations.

—  officers and employees other than the designated representative
are prohibited to speak externally on behalf of the Company
when communicating with external parties such as the media,
analysts or investors.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the
view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of
the Group, as opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate
internal audit department, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform independent review of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to
review at least annually the need for an internal audit department.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to
provide compliance and full range of company secretarial services to
the Group in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing
regulatory environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Pui Shan, Bessie (“Ms. Chan”), the representative of Uni-1,
has been appointed as the company secretary of the Company with
effect from 13 June 2016. Her primary corporate contact person at
the Company is Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive Director and the
compliance officer of the Company.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, Ms. Chan has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with
Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Pursuant to Rule 5.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. Sze Tan Nei, who
is also an executive Director, was appointed as the Compliance Officer
of the Company on 20 June 2016. For her biographical information,
please refer to the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers. The insurance
coverage is reviewed by the Board on an annual basis.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the total fees in respect of audit
and non-audit services provided by BDO Limited, the auditor of the
Company and was also the reporting accountant of the Company in
relation to the Listing, are set out as follows:

Services rendered

AR5 B!

FiHRY

Audit services:
Annual audit service for the year
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Fee paid/payable
Bt EAER
HK$'000

THET

HE2017F3A3MBILFEZFE

ended 31 March 2017 Bt IR 560
Non-audit services: JEFFT RS ¢
Acting as reporting accountant ERBH LM 2B ETA
in relation to the Listing 1,460
Total 4ast 2,020
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements of the Group and other financial disclosures required
under the GEM Listing Rules and the Company’s management will
provide information and explanation to the Board to enable it to
make informed assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company in respect of its
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 68 to 73 of this annual report.
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ABOUT ESG REPORT

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the "ESG
report”) for Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group” and “we"). The ESG
report elaborates on the various work of the Group in fully
implementing the principle of sustainable development and its
performance of environmental, social and governance during the
Year. For information on our corporate governance, please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 16 to 32.

Scope of ESG Report

The ESG report presents the Group’s sustainability approach and
performance in the environmental and social aspects of its business in
Hong Kong during the Year. The Group will continue to strengthen its
efforts to collect information in order to enhance its performance in
the environmental and social areas and to disclose related information
in sustainable development.

Reporting Guidelines

The ESG report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” as set out
in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Stakeholder Engagement

Our employees from different divisions of the Group were involved in
helping us recognize our sustainability performance. The data
collected not only highlights the Group’s sustainable initiatives during
the Year, but also sets out the basis of the Group’s sustainability
strategies. The Group will increase the stakeholder engagement via
constructive dialogue, with a view to driving long-term prosperity.

Information and Feedbacks

For detailed information about environmental and corporate
governance, please refer to the official website (http://www.
winsongrouphk.com) and this report. Your opinions will be highly
valued by the Group. If you have any advice or suggestions, please
send your correspondence to the following email address:
ir@winsongrouphk.com.
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CARE FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT

Environmental Management System

The establishment of Environmental Protection Committee (EPC)
represents our unremitting efforts in environmental protection. The
EPC maintains close collaborations with green groups and chambers
of commerce to promote the concept of sustainable development
within the Group. With the help of EPC, we regularly assess the
potential negative environmental impacts during operation and
evaluate their significance. Initiatives are implemented according to
the result of evaluation to resolve the negative impacts identified. To
keep up to date with best environment practices in the industry, we
are a member of Environmental Contractors Management
Association. Since 2001, we have been certified to be in compliance
with the standard of ISO 14001 Environmental Management System.

Our effort on environmental protection was appreciated. The awards
regarding environmental responsibility received during the Year are
listed in the table below.
Organizer Award

Hong Kong Environmental
Protection Association

Certificate of Wood Recycling & Tree
Conservation Scheme 2016

Environmental Campaign
Committee

Hong Kong Green Organization
Certificate — Carbon Reduction
Certificate

Environmental Protection

We strictly comply with local laws and regulations regarding air
emission, such as the Air Pollution Control Ordinance and Ozone
Layer Protection Ordinance. In consideration of the potential threats
of climate change to the communities, the Group has made steady
progress in reducing its carbon footprints across the business. As part
of our many initiatives to reduce energy consumption, we encourage
our employees to switch off lights and electronic equipment while not
in use, set the temperature of the air-conditioners at an energy-
efficient level (best at 25.5°C), and install energy-saving light bulbs
and high-performance electrical equipment. Apart from energy
conservation, we pay attention to the exhaust emission. To optimize
the efficiency of fuel consumption, the schedule for checkups and
maintenance is systematically monitored to maintain the optimal
condition of our vehicles. We also understand that the use of
chemicals such as detergent and pesticides has a direct impact to the
environment and is one of our primary concerns. Therefore, we
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advocate work methodologies with less use of chemicals where
possible to minimize the environmental impact. In order to quantify
our environmental performance and enhance the environmental
awareness of our employees, carbon audit training was provided to
our employees during the Year.

Water Management

Water is a precious natural resource. Everyone shares the global
responsibility to promote sustainable use of water resources on the
Earth. We strictly comply with local laws and regulations regarding
water discharge, such as the Water Pollution Control Ordinance and
Waterworks Ordinance. We encourage our employees working in
headquarter to commit resources only where justified, and turn off
the faucet tightly. We also fix dripping taps immediately, and install
flow restrictors and spray nozzles where possible. Our on-site
employees are required to follow a standard water pollution control
procedure to reduce the water pollution. Wastewater containing
bleach, buffering cream or specific detergent is diluted before
discharge to sewers. To enhance employees’ knowledge of
wastewater discharge, relevant ordinances and environmental
measures are introduced to our employees.

Waste Management

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations regarding
waste management, such as the Waste Disposal Ordinance. Waste
reduction plays a major role on alleviating the pressure on landfills.
We implement the policy of double-sided printing and copying and
disseminate information by electronic means whenever possible to
reduce the consumption of paper. We encourage our employees to
avoid the use of disposable and non-recyclable products, and to use
refillable stationeries instead of one-off stationeries. Recycling bins are
also available to collect paper products in headquarter. We work with
qualified recycling companies in our provision of waste management
service. In addition, the Group advocates environmentally friendly
materials where appropriate, for instance, our employees are
encouraged to print internal documents on recycled paper. Apart
from non-hazardous waste, our major hazardous wastes, such as used
toner cartridges, are collected for recycling.
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ESTABLISHMENT OF AN EXCELLENT TEAM

Employment Standard

Talent is the foundation for stable development of the Group. The
Group strictly complies with local labor laws and regulations regarding
compensation, benefits, dismissal, working hours and rest period,
such as the Employment Ordinance and Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance. Our recruitment process involves age verification and
identification examination, such as ID card check to avoid employment
of child labor. A non-discrimination approach is adopted throughout
the whole recruitment process. We also employed people with
disabilities of which details can refer to the part of Contribution to the
Community. The voluntary nature of overtime work can also protect
our employees from forced labor, and overtime pay shall be made in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. Before the start of
employment, employees are required to enter into the labor contract,
clearly stating the duties and responsibilities of the role to prevent any
forced labor. For resigned employees, we pay the outstanding wages
on time.

Employees’ Benefits

Our employees are our most valuable asset and we value their rights
and welfare. The salary structure is reviewed annually to ensure that
the Group offers competitive remuneration package to our
employees. Apart from basic salary, we also offer discretionary bonus
based on the individual performance of the employees and our
financial performance. Statutory holidays are provided in accordance
with the relevant regulations. Our employees can enjoy different types
of leave, including annual leave, sick leave, casual leave,
compassionate leave and maternity leave. Long service award is
offered as an appreciation for the contribution and dedication of
long-serving employees.

The Group believes that two-way communication is essential to
employee engagement that brings job satisfaction, high productivity,
and low turnover. Staff Welfare Committee was set up to provide
proper channels for quality communication between employees and
management. In order to foster team spirit, we organized a range of
recreational activities during the Year, including Christmas Party and
annual dinner. Furthermore, the introduction of Casual Wear Day on
every Friday and the birthday leave represents the consistent endeavor
of the Committee in providing a friendly workplace.
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Career Development

In order to establish an excellent team and ensure the rapid
development and efficient operation of the Group, we monitor the
employees’ performance continuously. We also make
recommendations on their training needs and career development in
the appraisal with a view to maintaining the competitiveness of our
employees. Our promotion is executed on a fair and open basis. We
do not tolerate any form of discrimination on grounds of gender,
race, skin color, age, religion and nationality. When we promote an
employee, we consider thoroughly the employee’s character, ability
and performance at work. Competent employees will be considered
for internal promotion in recognition of their efforts and contributions.

Nurturing Talent and Succession Planning

To enrich our employees’ experience and industry knowledge, the
Group provides orientation and internal training to employees in
targeted, systematic and forward-looking approach. We provide
regular training of various topics to relevant employees across
different departments, such as information technology and system
application, environmental protection, I1SO training, safety training as
well as trainings for supervisory roles. In addition, we encourage our
employees to develop their potential through independent learning by
subsidizing our employees to join external training. Employees are
encouraged to attend external talks and seminars to enrich their
knowledge in discharging their duties.

PROTECTION FOR EMPLOYEES' HEALTH AND
SAFETY

Safety Management System

Work safety is an integral part of the sustainable development of the
Group, and thus we put the safety of our employees as the first
priority. A comprehensive work safety management and supervision
system is vital for enhancing safety performance. We strictly comply
with local laws and regulations regarding occupational health and
safety, such as the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance,
Dangerous Goods Ordinance and Factories and Industrial
Undertakings Ordinance. Our safety management system meets the
international standard of Occupational Health and Safety Assessment
Series (OHSAS) 18001. We are also a member of Green Cross Group
organized by Occupational Safety and Health Council. Safety
Committee is established to promote occupational health and
workplace safety to our employees and to conduct periodic review on
the workplace safety and occupational health measures.
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Support of Safety Workplace

In addition to providing workplace safety guidelines to our employees,
workplace safety inspection is conducted regularly to identify the
hazards associated with activities of each process and evaluate the
risks associated with the hazards identified. In response to the risk
evaluation result, preventive and protective measures are
implemented. Apart from providing personal protective equipment to
our employees whenever necessary, safety briefing and training
courses are also held to raise their awareness of workplace safety and
to ensure the efficiency of the personal protective equipment for
protecting our employees. In order to minimize the risk associated
with occupational health and safety, some employees are required to
hold relevant certificates, such as completion of height safety training
course, to ensure the employees are knowledgeable about the
protective measures relating to their job.

Accident Handling Scheme

Although protective measures have implemented, our employees are
vulnerable to work-related accidents and injuries given the nature of
our services. In case there is work-related accident, we conduct a
detailed analysis for the cause of injuries and implement measures to
improve or rectify the issues. We continuously monitor the
improvement measures to minimize the possibility of accidents.

COMMITMENT TO CLIENTS AND SUPPLIERS

Supply Chain Management

The Group pays careful attention to instilling our sustainable
development commitments across the entire supply chain. A balanced
judgment is made after considering environmental and social factors.
Suppliers with certification of I1SO 14001 or ISO 9001 Quality
Management System Certification or OHSAS 18001 or other
accreditation will be given preference. In addition to the quality of
product or service, the suppliers’ environmental value and awareness
of occupational health and safety are taken into account in the
supplier selection. After supplier selection, we continuously evaluate
the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors with respect to raw
materials or service quality, reliability, environmental performance and
occupational health and safety as well as timely delivery to minimize
the relevant risk. We also take green purchasing principle into
consideration. The usage of material is constantly evaluated to avoid
overstocking and squandering resources.
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Protect Client

Product quality is one of our major concerns as we aim at providing
the best quality service to our clients. The Group places great
emphasis on quality control and has obtained ISO 9001. Our
employees regularly check the quality of services performed, including
services delivered by the Group’s own employees and third party
service providers, and record occasions of substandard performance
for follow-up actions. Besides regular quality check, we are committed
to protecting the health and safety of the clients. For example,
Winson Professional Pest Control Company Limited (“Winson Pest
Control”), a subsidiary of the Group which provides pest management
services, are required to only use pesticides registered under the
Pesticides Ordinance. Winson Pest Control aims to eradicate harmful
pests while taking into account the basic principles of public health
and environmental protection, and thus various initiatives are
employed to provide a safe environment to our clients.

Client Service

We are committed to delivering professional services and achieving
customer satisfaction by providing a client-oriented service. To
understand clients” need, we conduct site assessment and
communicate with clients before commencing services. The
management holds regular meetings with on-site employees to review
and discuss various aspects of operations to ensure services meet the
clients’ expectations. We constantly collect the clients’ feedback
regarding quality of service, environmental and workplace safety
performance and application of material and tools. To enhance
clients’ confidence in the Group, we strive not only to provide
satisfactory services to our clients, but also to promptly investigate the
root cause of complaints and provide corrective action and carry out
remedial and preventive action in response to the complaints from
our clients. Our clients also send us letter of appreciation in
acknowledgement of our service excellence and highly client-oriented
services. Mediazone Group, an international business magazine
publisher, presented “2016 Hong Kong's Most Valuable Companies
Award” to us as recognition for our effort on clients’ service.
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Business Ethics

The Group highly values the confidential data of our clients. We
strictly comply with local laws and regulations regarding privacy
matter, such as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. We are
committed to maintaining transparency, legitimacy, relevance and
accuracy when we handle the confidential data of our clients. Every
employee is required to enter into a confidentiality agreement which
forbids him/her to disclose confidential or proprietary information
outside the Group, either during or after employment, without the
Group's authorization. We endeavor to protect the software system
to prevent virus contamination and the leakage of clients’ information.
Trainings relating to cyber security and relevant risk management are
provided to our employees to enhance the employees’ awareness of
cyber security. We have designated employees to monitor notices,
news and information in the media in connection with tenders
relating to environmental hygiene services and airline catering support
services works to ensure we strictly comply with local laws and
regulations regarding advertising and labeling.

Anti-corruption

In order to maintain the Group’s integrity and justice, we strictly
comply with the laws and regulations regarding bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, such as the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance. To maintain high standards of corporate governance, we
fulfill our commitment through abiding by anti-corruption policies and
guidelines, such as acceptance of gifts and conflicts of interest.
Related procedures and guidelines are available in the employee
handbook. Employees can report any irregularities to the designated
personnel. The Group will investigate the improper behaviors and take
corresponding remedial measures against the irregularities.

CONTRIBUTION TO THE COMMUNITY

The Group, deep-rooted in Hong Kong, plays an active role in
contributing to the society. In order to build an inclusive society, we
have given employment opportunities for disabilities, to help them
integrate into the community. Appropriate types of support, such as
targeted training and emotional counseling, is always available to the
disabled employees when required. Based on disability and expertise,
we make appropriate arrangements for disabled employees. In order
to promote the disabled employees’ integration with the community
and foster social integration of able-bodied and disabled persons, out
of work gathering and counseling are organized in their spare time
and working time.
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Apart from the provision of job opportunity to people with disabilities,
we are committed to good corporate citizenship and contributing to
the community by sponsoring a variety of charitable organization and
fund raising activities. During the Year, the Group has supported
several charities, such as the World Children’s Fund Hong Kong
Limited, Children’s Hope Fund Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong
College of Technology (HKCT), benefitting children and youth
services. In addition to donation, we are a member of “Employers
Consultative Committee” organized by HKCT to provide up-to-date
industry information to our youth. Further to our social commitment,
our employees actively participate in community services and stimulate
a corporate culture of caring and respect. Social Service Committee is
also established. The spirit of service, as well as the care and love
shared by the committee not only helps to make a difference among
the needy, but also helps to foster care and harmony within the
community.

Our effort on community investment was appreciated. The awards

regarding social commitment received during the Year are listed in

the table below.

Organizer Award

Kwun Tong Home Affairs Caring Employer for the year of
Department; Hong Kong 2016

Federation of Handicapped
Youth

The Hong Kong Council of Social 2016/17 Caring Company (10
Service Year+)

Labour and Welfare Bureau;
Rehabilitation Advisory
Committee; The Hong Kong
Joint Council for People with
Disabilities; The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service

18 Districts Caring Employers 2016
Award — Special Award for
being awarded for 5 consecutive
years or above
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Ng Sing Mui (ZBEH) (“Madam Ng”), aged 56, a co-
founder of the Group, has been appointed as an executive Director
since 31 May 2016 and is currently acting as the chairperson of the
Group. She is also the chairperson of the Nomination Committee and
holds directorships in all subsidiaries of the Company. Madam Ng is
primarily responsible for the strategic planning, operation planning
and overall management of the Group.

Madam Ng has more than 30 years of experience in the environmental
hygiene services industry in Hong Kong. She has held a leadership role
in the overall management and business development of the Group
and has maintained relationships with key customers since co-
founded the Group in December 1983.

Madam Ng is a certified associate fellow of the Australian Institute of
Management since September 1995. She was also awarded a Training
Certificate on Fire Prevention (Commercial Sector) issued by the
Occupational Safety & Health Council in August 2001.

Madam Ng is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Sze Wai Lun,
both are executive Directors. She is the sole director of Rich Cheer
Development Limited and Sze’s Holdings Limited, both companies
have disclosable interests in the Shares under the provisions in
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO™).

Ms. Sze Tan Nei (&) (“Ms. Sze"), aged 36, joined the Group in
February 2007 and was appointed as an executive Director on 20 June
2016. She is also the compliance officer of the Company and a
member of the Remuneration Committee. Ms. Sze also holds
directorships in several subsidiaries of the Company. She is primarily
responsible for strategic planning, operation planning and compliance
control of the Group’s business operation.

Ms. Sze graduated from Queensland University of Technology,
Australia, with a Bachelor of Business (Management) in October 2004.
She completed the Pest Control and Pesticide Safety for Industrial
Undertakings course organised by The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2008. Ms. Sze was certified as a Quality Management
Systems Auditor by the International Register of Certificated Auditors,
by completing the Lead Auditor Training Course (in accordance to
international standards ISO 9001:2008 & ISO 19011:2002) co-
organised by the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency and
International Management Systems Associates Limited in October
2009. She has also completed the Environmental Management
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Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training Course for ISO 14001:2004 &
ISO 19011:2002 in January 2010, and the Occupational Health &
Safety Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training Course
for BS OHSAS 18001:2007 & ISO 19011:2002 in April 2011.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Sze was employed as property
management assistant in April 2005 by Jones Lang LaSalle
Management Ltd, being a company engaging in the provision of
services specialising in real estates. She was subsequently promoted to
the position of assistant management surveyor in March 2006 and
remained in that position until she left such company in August 2006.
In August 2006, she was employed as a marketing assistant in the
communications department of Hongkong Land Group Limited, being
a company engaging in property investment, management and
development until February 2007.

Ms. Sze is the daughter of Madam Ng, the chairperson of the Group
and an executive Director, and the sister of Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an
executive Director.

Mr. Ang Ming Wah (G#BH%E) (“Mr. Ang”), aged 61, joined the
Group in March 2007 and was appointed as an executive Director on
20 June 2016. He is primarily responsible for the business
development and planning, control and management of the Group’s
business operation.

Mr. Ang graduated from the University of Waterloo, Canada, with a
Bachelor of Mathematics in October 1978, and Bachelors of Arts in
October 1979. He also completed an Executive Program organised by
the Business School of the University of Michigan in 1997. Mr. Ang
was admitted as an associate member of the Hong Kong
Management Association in 1986 and was appointed as an
"Occupational Safety and Health Ambassador” by the Occupational
Safety & Health Council in 2008.

Mr. Ang has over 30 years of experience in the environmental hygiene
services industry in Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ang
was employed by Reliance Services Company Limited (now known as
ISS Facility Services Limited), being a company engaging in the
provision of environmental hygiene related services, as operations
manager in May 1986. He was subsequently promoted to senior
operations manager in October 1988. Mr. Ang left such company in
February 2000 and his last position held was director in operation
department. Mr. Ang subsequently joined Best Result Cleaning
Services Ltd., being a company engaging in the provision of cleaning
services, as general manager in July 2000 and was appointed as
director and general manager in 2004. He held that position until he
left such company in September 2006.
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Mr. Sze Wai Lun (FE{E1®) (“Mr. Sze”), aged 34, joined the Group in
September 2007 and was appointed as an executive Director on 20
June 2016. He is primarily responsible for the overall management of
IT development of the Group.

Mr. Sze graduated from Griffith University, Australia, with a Bachelor
of Commerce in December 2006, and a Diploma of Commerce from
Queensland Institute of Business and Technology (now known as
Griffith College), Australia, in February 2003. He has also obtained a
Diploma in SME Company Operation & Management from Hong
Kong Productivity Council in September 2014.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Sze was employed by Citicorp
International Limited, being a company which provides banking and
financial services as a securities operations professional in the
securities operations department of the operations and technology
group in April 2007. He held that position until he left such company
in August 2007.

Mr. Sze is the son of Madam Ng, the chairperson of the Group and
an executive Director, and the brother of Ms. Sze, an executive
Director.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (F¥K) (“Mr. Yuen”), M.H., aged
69, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21
February 2017. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yuen graduated with a Master of Science in Interdisciplinary
Design and Management from The University of Hong Kong in
November 2013. He is an Eminent Fellow Member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors, Fellow Member of Chartered
Institute of Housing, Fellow Member of the HK Institute of Housing
and a Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. He has
approximately 32 years of real estate experience from both public and
private sectors. He currently is a director of a real estate investment
fund.

Mr. Yuen has served as ex-chairman of the Industry Training Advisory
Committee (property management) of the Education Bureau, past
chairman of the Real Estate Service Training Board, ex-committee
member of the Employee Retraining Board, ex-member of the Land
and Building Advisory Committee, past chairman of the Chartered
Institute of Housing (HK branch), past President of the HK Association
of Property Management Companies and past president of the HK
Institute of Real Estate Administrators.
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Mr. Chung Koon Yan (f#3[E) (“Mr. Chung”), aged 53, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February
2017. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Chung graduated with a Master of Professional Accounting from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Hong Kong in November
2000. He is a practicing member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chung is also a fellow member of
each of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since October 2003,
February 2007 and November 2014 respectively.

Mr. Chung is a director of Chiu, Choy & Chung CPA Ltd. and has
more than 20 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and taxation.
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of Asian
Citrus Holdings Limited (stock code: 73), the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and were admitted to
trading on AIM (a market operated by the London Stock Exchange) in
2005 but which have been cancelled from trading on AIM since 29
March 2017, an independent non-executive director of Synergy
Group Holdings International Ltd. (stock code: 1539), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and an
independent non-executive director of Great World Company
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8003), the shares of which are listed on
GEM.

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung (R 38) (“Mr. Ma”), aged 57, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is
also a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Ma is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. He graduated from the
Australian National University, Australia with a Bachelor Degree in
Arts in 1983 and a Bachelor Degree in Laws in 1984. He was admitted
to the High Court of Hong Kong in July 1987 and is also a qualified
lawyer in both state and federal courts in Australia. Mr. Ma is
currently a partner of Chiu & Partners and his main practice area is
securities, banking and commercial law.
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Mr. Wong Yat Sum (Z—1) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 40, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February
2017. He is also a member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Wong obtained a Special Degree of Bachelor of Science in
Accounting from The University of Hull in the United Kingdom in July
2000. He has been a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since October 2014 and Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants since August 2013.

Mr. Wong has over 16 years of auditing, accounting and financial
management experience. He worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from September 2000 to October 2007. From November 2007 to
November 2009, Mr. Wong worked for a private wood flooring
company as a financial controller in Shanghai, China. He has been the
chief financial officer of Youyuan International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2268), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, since December 2009 and has been its company
secretary and authorised representative since 14 January 2010.

Mr. Chan Chun Sing (BRiEE) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 37, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February
2017. He is also a member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Chan has over 13 years of experience in the fields of accounting,
auditing and compliance matters of listed companies in Hong Kong.
He obtained a bachelor’'s degree of arts in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001. In November 2015, Mr.
Chan obtained an executive master of business administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has been a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since April 2006 and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors since March 2013. Mr. Chan worked for Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from September 2001 to July 2011 and his last position
held was senior manager in the audit department.

Mr. Chan joined a private company as chief financial officer from July
2013 to February 2014 and was appointed as executive director from
March 2014 to April 2015 and was designated as non-executive
director from May 2015 to March 2017. He serves as an independent
non-executive director of Lai Si Enterprise Holding Limited (whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 2266) since January 2017. He has also been appointed as the
chief financial officer of Lap Kei Engineering (Holdings) Limited (whose
shares are listed on GEM, stock code: 8369) since February 2015.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Chi Kong (R&M/I)(“Mr. Leung”), aged 55, is the senior
manager — Operations & Development of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for the overall management of sites operations of the
Group.

Mr. Leung has over 30 years of experiences in the environmental
hygiene services industry in Hong Kong. He was employed by Reliance
Services Company Limited (now known as ISS Facility Services
Limited), being a company engaging in the provision of environmental
hygiene related services, as an assistant foreman. He left such
company in February 2001 and the last position held was site
manager. Mr. Leung then joined Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd.,
being a company engaging in the provision of cleaning services,
where he worked as assistant operations manager in February 2001
and was subsequently promoted to operation manager in October
2004, where he held such position until he left the company in
September 2006 and joined the Group in February 2007.

Mr. Leung has obtained a Certificate Programme on Supervisory
Management from The Hong Kong Management Association in
March 2000 and he was awarded a Training Certificate on Safety for
Cleansing Work (managers and supervisors) by the Occupational
Safety & Health Council in December 2009. Mr. Leung also obtained
an Aluminum Mobile Working Platform Training Certificate issued by
Origin Production Limited trading as The Hong Kong Safety Training
Association in July 2004 and held a Construction Industry Safety
Training Certificate from June 2004 to June 2007.

Mr. Chow Kai Chi (BEXE)(“Mr. Chow"), aged 49, is the Group
Senior Finance Manager. He is primarily responsible for the financial
reporting, financial planning, treasury, financial control matters of the
Group.

Mr. Chow obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Business Accounting in
September 1999 from the University of Lincolnshire & Humberside (now
known as the University of Lincoln), the United Kingdom by long
distance learning. He is currently a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was admitted as a
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
October 2001.
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Mr. Chow has over 27 years of experience in accounting industry in
Hong Kong. He was employed as a clerk in the finance department by
Nanyang Brothers Tobacco Co., Ltd, a tobacco manufacturer in June
1988. He was promoted to senior clerk in January 1991 and held that
position until he left in August 1991. Mr. Chow then joined Yue Po
Engineering Co., Ltd, being a company that provides kitchen design
services and supplies catering equipment as senior clerk in the
accounting department in March 1992 and was promoted to account
officer in October 1992, in which position he remained until he left
such company in March 1995. He then joined Siu Wor Trading Co.
Ltd, being a company engaging in jewellery trading related business
as an accountant in April 1995 and left the company in January 1998.
Mr. Chow subsequently joined Trans Asia Computer Superstore Ltd.,
being a company engaging in sales of computer related equipment as
an accountant from June 1998 to August 1999. He then worked as a
senior accountant in Hung Mau Realty & Construction Ltd, being a
company engaging in the provision of general construction works
from November 1999 to July 2002. From July 2002 to April 2005, Mr.
Chow worked as an accountant at Broadway Photo Supply Ltd, then
being an exporter of camera and photographic equipment. He then
worked as an accountant in Suga Electronics Limited, being a
company providing advanced electronics manufacturing services, from
May 2005 to August 2005 and joined the Group in November 2005.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 31 May 2016 and was
registered as a non-Hong Kong company under Part 16 of the
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622 (Laws of Hong Kong) on 4 July
2016. Pursuant to the completion of the group reorganisation as
detailed in the section headed “History, Development and
Reorganisation” in the Prospectus, the Company has since 17
February 2017 became the holding company of the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group.

The Shares were listed on GEM with effect from 16 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business of the Group is provision of environmental
hygiene and related services and airline catering support services in
Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the
material factors underlying its financial position, as well as the
development and likely future prospects of the Group’s business are
provided throughout this annual report and in particular under the
following separate sections:

(@ review of the Company’s business and financial position; and
development and future prospects of the Company’s business
are shown in the “Chairperson’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report; and

(b)  details of key performance indicators are shown in the sections
headed “Financial Highlights” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report.

These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

No significant events that have an effect on the Group subsequent to
the Period Under Review.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's businesses, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties directly
or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The risk factors set
out below are those that could result in the Group’s businesses,
financial conditions, results of operations or growth prospects
differing materially from expected or historical results. Such factors
are by no means exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be
other risks in addition to those shown below which are not known to
the Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to
be material in the future.

Strategic Risks

The competition in the environmental hygiene services market is
intense due to low barriers of entries.

The Group continuously reviews its competitive edges in view of the
industry and will continue to strength its established position in the
environmental hygiene services industry by (i) building and sustaining
the reputation as socially responsible and high quality services
provider; (ii) increasing operational efficiency and service excellence to
enhance customer experience; and (iii) treasuring the business
opportunities from client referrals.

Operational Risks

Being labour intensive industry, difficulties in recruiting new workers
may lead to lack of capacity to obtain new projects which in turn
result in losing market shares and competitiveness.

In response to the high labour turnover risks, (i) Staff Welfare
Committee was set up to provide proper channels for quality
communication between employees and management; (ii) budget
(including manpower budget) is prepared for every projects; and (iii)
third party service provides are engaged to ensure sufficient
manpower.

Increase in the statutory minimum wage may lead to high labour cost
and low profitability. Nevertheless, the management has remained
resolute in controlling labour and other costs so as to maintain the
Group’s competitiveness and bolster its market position. Certain
measures are adopted to monitor costs, for example, prepare budget
on a project basis based on experience of senior management and
establish approval procedure for incurring additional costs to
accommodate for situations when additional expenditures are
required.
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High customer concentration is also principal risk facing by the Group.
Top 5 customers contribute a large proportion of the Group's
revenue, however, the top 5 customers are not obligated in any way
to continue to provide the Group with new businesses in the future at
a level similar to that in the past or at all. To balance the above risk
with benefits, the Group has established a relatively broad customer
base ranging from various government departments in Hong Kong
and subsidiaries of multi-national companies to tenants of various
premises.

In addition, the Group’s reputation may adversely affect if any of the
sub-contractors does not strictly comply with the safety measures. The
Group continuously evaluate the Group’s suppliers and sub-
contractors with respect to raw materials or service quality, reliability,
environmental performance and occupational health and safety as
well as timely delivery to minimize the relevant risk and issue work
guidance to the staff of sub-contractors to monitor the third party
providers.

Compliance Risks

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
insurance coverage may not adequately protect the Group against
certain risks. Through close monitoring of various legal and regulatory
pronouncements from the government by its legal and compliance
personnel, the Group is able to keep itself updated with various
regulatory requirements and complies with local labour laws and
regulations such as the Employment Ordinance and Employees’
Compensation Ordinance. A comprehensive work safety management
and supervision system is also established for enhancing safety
performance. In addition, the management will review the insurance
coverage on an ongoing basis.

Please also refer to note 29 to the financial statements for the
financial risks facing by the Group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Company treats human resources as the Group's valuable assets.
Training and retaining good employees are always at top priorities.

Besides on-the-job trainings and funding for continuous learning, two
committees are set up to ensure good physical and psychological
health of our staffs. Workshops are held regularly to raise staff’s
awareness of occupational health and safety. The risk-free working
environment is guaranteed by the certification of OHSAS 18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management System. In addition, the
Company also organizes a range of recreational activities so as to
foster team spirit.

Customers

Keeping strong relationship with the customers is critical to maintain
the competitiveness of the Group.

For servicing industry with human as the main concern, it is vital to
have an independent, comprehensive quality assurance mechanism in
order to maintain high level of service, in which rule-of-man style and
subjectivity in the old days can be eliminated. In view of this, the
Company has established an evaluation mechanism with mutual
assessment by internal and external teams of professionals audits. In
order to achieve a set standard of service and customers’ satisfaction,
the work is monitored and reviewed in various aspects including
provision of resources, training, infrastructure and working
environment, with customers’ expectation as the foundation. For
services that are not up to high standard, remedial action will be
advised and implemented with continuous improvement follow-
through. Also, preventive measure will be formulated as future
guidelines.

Suppliers and Sub-contractors

The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers and sub-contractors
which are selected with reference to, among other things, material/
service quality, reliability and price. The Group performs annual
evaluation on the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors with respect
to raw materials/service quality, reliability and timely delivery.

Further discussions on the relationship with key stakeholders is set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has been putting unremitting efforts in environmental
protection by introducing sustainable machineries, devices and
equipment for operation.

The Group’s Environmental Protection Committee (EPC) maintains
close collaborations with green groups and chambers of commerce to
promote the concept of sustainable development. The Group's
determination is marked by the ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System accreditation obtained in 2001.

Further discussions on the environmental policies is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
during the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Group is in compliance with all the laws and
regulations that are applicable to the business operations of the
Group, details of which have been set out in the Prospectus under the
section headed “Regulatory Overview”, except the non-compliance
matter as set out in the Prospectus under the section headed “Business
— Non-compliance with Hong Kong Government leases and
occupation permit”.

As set out in Prospectus, the Group has made an application for a
lifetime waiver from the relevant government departments to release
user restriction of the leasehold land and buildings from industrial to
office for headquarters or back-office operations. As at 31 March
2017 and up to the date of this annual report, the vetting of the
waiver application by the relevant government departments was still
in progress.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the three years ended 31 March 2017, as extracted from the
Prospectus and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out on page 144 of this annual report. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 78 of this annual
report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 25
August 2017 (the “2017 AGM"), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 21 August 2017 to Friday, 25
August 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the 2017 AGM, all transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificate(s) must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 18 August
2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 March 2017, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$6,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was
600,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 76 of this annual report and
note 23 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2017, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution to the Shareholders.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the
date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

=

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) (appointed on 31 May 2016
Ms. Sze Tan Nei (appointed on 20 June 2016
Mr. Ang Ming Wah (appointed on 20 June 2016
Mr. Sze Wai Lun (appointed on 20 June 2016

= L =

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung

Mr. Wong Yat Sum

Mr. Chan Chun Sing

(appointed on 21 February 2017)
(appointed on 21 February 2017)
(appointed on 21 February 2017)
(appointed on 21 February 2017)
(appointed on 21 February 2017)

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, Madam Ng Sing
Mui, Ms. Sze Tan Nei, Mr. Ang Ming Wah and Mr. Sze Wai Lun will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2017
AGM.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years with effect from
the Listing Date unless terminated by not less than three months
written notice to the other party or otherwise in accordance with the
terms of the service agreement. They are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company
pursuant to the articles of association of the Company.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years with effect from the Listing Date unless terminated by not less
than three months written notice to the other party or otherwise in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company pursuant to the articles of association of
the Company.

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the 2017
AGM has any service agreement which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 42 to 48 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined
under Rule 18.25 of the GEM Listing Rules) to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is or was a party, and in
which a Director or an entity connected with a Director, or the
controlling shareholder (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31 March 2017 or at any time
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed at 31 March 2017 or at any time during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes”
below, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to
the date of this annual report was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices; provided that such indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of said persons.

Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2017
and up to the date of this annual report, there was or is, any
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) being in force for the benefit at any of the Directors
(whether made by the Company or otherwise) or any of the directors
of an associated company (if made by the Company).

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the
financial statements. The Remuneration Committee will review and
recommend the Board the remuneration and compensation packages
of the Directors and senior management with reference to their
respective experience, responsibilities, contribution, and time devoted
to the Group and the overall performance of the Group.

The Directors and senior management may also be granted options
under the share option schemes of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed on 21
February 2017, the principal terms of the pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were approved and adopted.
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to aid the
Company in retaining key and senior employee of the Group. Principal
terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were set out in the
Prospectus and note 24 to the financial statements.

An aggregate of 192,000 share options at an exercise price of
HK$0.42 per share, being the offer price under the share offer, were
granted on 23 February 2017 to an executive Director and certain
employees of the Group. No further options will be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

ERERTE

BERAAHBENBRENS

BiEW—-REN2017F2A218BBEHNE
FERFER BRNAFEEANBRESZ
(TEX A ENERENS DN EZK
REERAERKEMN B ARABENER
EHEEEEPARABBEAEENETE
MEKEE - BXAHEEAERETS
MEZBRRERNBRERBRTHEREN T
24 o

& 192,000 & A&7 E0.42 7% T (B A% 9
BEBETZHEE) 2BREER2017F2
AZEETFTHOTESEERASEEAETRERE -
BMreREE N MBS ERESS®E
— R AR -

IR BB B IR B R M 2
BRI DT :

Number of Shares (Note 1)

ROHE (1)
Granted on Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding Exercise
Category of 23 February  during during during asat31 Price per
participants 2017 theyear theyear theyear March 2017 Share Exercise Period (Note 2)
R2017% R2017
2238 RER  RFER  RER 38318 BRf T8
S EEER FRE  BOf | X¥ RITE wE (Ff&E2)
Director
Bz
Ang Ming Wah 64,000 = = = 64,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
HEHE 04277  201743R16BZ202743A15H
Sub-total 64,000 — — — 64,000
et
Employees
ES
In aggregate 128,000 — — — 128,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
&t 042%7T 201763 H16BZE2027%3 A 15H
Total 192,000 — — — 192,000
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Notes:

1. Number of Shares over which options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is exercisable.

2. All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may
only exercise their options in the following manner:

(a) 50% of the options granted shall become exercisable on 16 March
2017; and

(b) the remaining 50% of the options granted shall become exercisable
on 16 March 2018.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme") which was approved by a resolution of the sole Shareholder
passed on 21 February 2017. No options under the Share Option
Scheme has been granted since its adoption.

Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as
follow:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants,
advisers, substantial shareholders, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners or service
providers of the Group and to promote the success of the
business of the Group.

(b) Participant of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as
it may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time),
director, consultant, adviser, substantial shareholder, distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner or
service provider of the Group, options to subscribe at a price
calculated in accordance with paragraph (c) below for such
number of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme.
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1. REERLAHEEHBREASFELNAT
EEEELRNDEE -

2. FARBERARBEEMNBRENIRLN
BREZBEBEABURATHIATEREZ
A

(@ 50% M EEHBRETN2017F3A16
BT &

(b)  FERS0% BB B AR AT 120184 3
A16B8 1T -

BRERE

AN BB 4 — TE B AR RE A &) ([ BB AR O AT
21 EThR2017F2A21H BB R RZ
REEM-REME ARMNBRESTE
i BEARIR AR AT B AR -

AT RBREFENEZHRIHME

() BREFEHER
BREFEEERINBREREFD
AB RASBEREE (ZBERRE) -
B HAA BHE XERR H#H
ARl HER KB -FEF B
KR MRS R R R R SN B A
RS AREEBKE HES -

(b) FBREFEZEE
EFQUERENBREARELD
G AAEEETMEE (2B &R
B) - EF HBRA EBERE ZTEK
R-niHm- A8 fHES 2.
BEFP HEEHIRBHERRLE
P b - {18 5 R AR B R RCRE AT &1 AV 1
BT XBORFENEBRRBE
FEUEBEEHBENRD -

>
4
Z
cC
>
—
~
m
)
o
=
N
=t
N
N
(=}
o
g
i
+
Ed




60

10373 8 B HE AILIWIT DNOM DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
o

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price
solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and
shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the option, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and
(iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the
option.

Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 60,000,000 Shares, represent 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to any participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date
of grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing on 21 February 2017, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.

(c)

(d)

(e)

(7

(9)

(h)

R0 E 1%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2017, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by directors to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

() Long position in the Shares

EERTETHRAERERFE
EAMEBEEE KRG - HERD
RESzEBRAXR

MR2017F3A31H  RRARIESEREETH
AERARBI K EEMEREZE(EERE
FREBEGEHEXVER) 2 R - R G &
BEHEPHBREBEESFRBEERMNEXVISE
7TR8DEBAME A RQ R M B R BT 2 M 5k
KE (BREEERBEESFRBERIZZE
BXWEEIR AR ZERRAR) X
EERNBIEESFRBEKRAIEIEKETHE
BB RIEAIZER T A F5.46
KES/TRBEBESTETESFRHANS
RABRBRAZERIOKBEIT

N RROKEFR

Number of
Shares/  Approximate
underlying percentage of
Shares held/ interest in the
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest interested Company
¥ ®E L[ NN
RENRG &
EEMS B REEHY HERGEE BHABEH
Ng Sing Mui Interest of a controlled corporation; Settlor 450,000,000 75%
of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
RIS ZELE R 2REAVETEA
(MFE1)
Sze Tan Nei Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 450,000,000 75%
B 53 9 2REETEX=A (E2)
Sze Wai Lun Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 3) 450,000,000 75%
iR 2EETX = A (E3)
Ang Ming Wah Beneficial owner (Note 4) 64,000 0.011%
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(I) Long position in the ordinary shares of
associated corporations

I REBIEEERNER

Notes:

2
A
@)
z Number of  Approximate
g Name of associated shares held/ percentage of
o Name of Director  corporation Capacity/nature of interest interested interest
z % #E
o L s
% Espgs HEEE SR 2708 £ 131 igrig 4=| BMABED
z
2 Ng Sing Mui Sze's Holdings Interest of a controlled 100%
(®) Limited corporation; Settlor of a
Z discretionary trust
= REETG MRZERABRAR XELE#EZD 2#ER
§ METE A
o Rich Cheer Beneficial owner 100%
& Development
= Limited
= URBERARAF EHHEBA
g Sze Tan Nei Sze's Holdings Beneficiary of a discretionary 100%
N Limited trust
S e PR BEZRERAT 2HERTS
zl

Sze Wai Lun Sze's Holdings Beneficiary of a discretionary 100%

Limited trust
1 12 fm HERERERAT Z2EEFEXZEA

All the 450,000,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Sze's Holdings Limited,
which is in turn held by Rich Cheer Development Limited acting as the
trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust is a discretionary trust
set up by Madam Ng Sing Mui as settlor and Rich Cheer Development
Limited as trustee on 8 January 2015. The beneficiaries of the Sze Family
Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. Madam Ng
Sing Mui is the settlor of the Sze Family Trust and the sole director of Sze's
Holdings Limited and therefore Madam Ng Sing Mui is deemed or taken to
be interested in all the 450,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Sze's
Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO. Madam Ng Sing Mui is also
the sole director and shareholder of Rich Cheer Development Limited.

Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Ms. Sze Tan Nei is
one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore she is deemed
or taken to be interested in all the 450,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by
Sze's Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

Mr. Sze Wai Lun is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is one
of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore he is deemed and
taken to be interested in all the 450,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by
Sze's Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

GEE

1.

Ffr /5 450,000,000 % fi% 17 ¥5 £ i X 4% 8 B R
NEBEREE MEKEREGRAFHLWR
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4. Mr. Ang Ming Wah is interested in 64,000 Shares which may be allotted and
issued to him upon full exercise of all options granted to him under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company nor their associates had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the required standard of dealings by directors as referred to in Rule
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules as at 31 March 2017.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'/OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2017, the following persons (other than the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO:

Long position in the Shares

Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest

56 HEtE

B R &

Beneficial owner

EDBEBA

Sze's Holdings Limited
BERZERERRA A

Rich Cheer Development Limited

Interest of controlled corporation as the

4. HHAELERRBEERAMESABRER

BEEN B EER BT ER TR
B N 3 47#)64,000 R AR R % -

Br ESCRTIEEEE SN - 7R2017F3A318 © #f
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A

& o
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DREEROGHEZR AR

R2017%3A31H U FTATGEESZE R K
NAIEBITHRAB) AR B R D =k 48 BE A
BEEEELRIRIEES R EIKGI %336
BEAFENELMPHERIAR

REROHERE
Number of Percentage of
Shares held/ interests in
interested in  the Company
¥ #E EARAT
EEN 5y
KM #AE Aot
450,000,000 75%
450,000,000 75%

trustee of the Sze Family Trust (Note)
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Note:

The entire issued share capital of Sze's Holdings Limited is held by Rich Cheer
Development Limited as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust is a
discretionary trust established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of the Sze
Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. By virtue of
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Rich Cheer Development Limited is deemed or
taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the Directors were not
aware that there was any person (not being a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and was
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, each of Sze's Holdings Limited, Rich
Cheer Development Limited, Madam Ng Sing Mui, Ms. Sze Tan Nei
and Mr. Sze Wai Lun (“Controlling Shareholders”) have entered into
the deed of non-competition undertakings (“Deed of Non-
competition Undertakings”) in favour of the Company (for its own
and on behalf of all members of the Group) on 23 February 2017,
pursuant to which each of the Controlling Shareholders, irrevocably
and unconditionally, undertakes and covenants with the Company
that during the period that the Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings remains effective, each of the Controlling Shareholders
shall not, and shall procure that none of his/her/its associates (except
any member of the Group), directly or indirectly (other than through
the Group) engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or
render any services to or otherwise be involved, whether as a
shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent or otherwise (as the
case may be), in any business in competition with or likely to be in
competition with the Group’s existing business activity and any
business activities which may be undertaken by the Group from time
to time and/or which any member of the Group may undertake in
Hong Kong from time to time. Details of the Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings have been set out in the section headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings” of the Prospectus.
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The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance
with the terms of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during
the Period Under Review. The independent non-executive Directors,
having reviewed the annual declarations and made reasonable
enquiry, were satisfied that the Controlling Shareholders have
complied with the terms of the Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings during the Period Under Review.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS OR SUB-
CONTRACTORS

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the percentages of (i) revenue
attributable to the Group’s major customers; and (ii) cost of services
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers or sub-contractors are set
out below:

The largest customer RAEP
Five largest customers in aggregate ARBEFEE

The largest supplier or sub-contractor

Five largest suppliers or sub-contractors
in aggregate

RAREELD BE —
ARHEBK D BEA —

ARBDEESZEERRAREFSEARE
BB T IHFAERZBRGRRIELNE
Boffie BYFFRTEETNEHNFERM
RELAEERR  EMERBKRRNDE
HIf B 8PP B T ARG RIB R IRR

FTEEFREEBRIEHE

HE2017F3A83MBIEFEE  AEEBEXTE
EEEMAEWZ: RiAEE T EHEREL
DERBBEEREHRANE D LLEINOT

Approximate percentage
of the Group's

EAREENBAE S
Cost of
Revenue services
U 2% BR 3% BX A5
37.7% —
63.4% —
14.7%
20.4%

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers, five largest suppliers and sub-
contractors noted above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where
the Company is incorporated.
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PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Shares were listed on GEM on 16 March 2017. During the Period
Under Review, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors nor the controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules) nor any of their respective associates that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have
with the Group during the Period Under Review.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by Messis Capital Limited (“Compliance Adviser”), the
Company’'s compliance adviser, save for the advisory and
documentation fees paid to Messis Capital Limited as the sponsor to
the Listing, its obligations under the Underwriting Agreements (as
defined in the Prospectus and the compliance adviser’'s agreement
entered into between the Company and the Compliance Adviser
dated 14 March 2017, neither the Compliance Adviser nor any of its
directors, employees or close associates, has or may have, any interest
In the share capital of the Company or any member of the Group
(including options or rights to subscribe for such securities) or
otherwise in relation to the Company which is required to be notified
the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group had not entered
into any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
that are not exempted under Rule 20.71 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company maintained the public float as required under the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the Period Under Review and has continued
to maintain such float as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The Shares were listed on GEM on 16 March 2017 and there has
been no change in auditor since the Listing Date. The financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 have been audited by
BDO Limited, who will retire, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the 2017 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the
2017 AGM to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson and Executive Director

7 June 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 37 B e

www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

TEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{85H @ +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 143, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (the “HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 3 A% B

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 4.8 and
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Service income from provision of environmental hygiene, airline
catering support and related services is recognised when the services
are rendered. We have identified recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key performance indicators
of the Group and there is an inherent risk over the recognition of
revenue by the management to meet specific targets or expectations.

HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN OUR
AUDIT:

Our audit procedures to address the revenue recognition included the
following:

o evaluation of appropriateness of the recognition policy with
reference to the relevant accounting standard,;

. inspecting, on sample basis, customer contracts to identify
terms and conditions relating to the provision of services,

o performing substantive analytical procedures to assess whether
the recognised revenue was in line with the expected level;

o inspecting service income recognised during the year, on sample
basis, and comparing details of the service income being
recognised with relevant underlying documentation, including
service contracts, service records and invoices; and

o assessing, on a sample basis, the service income recorded before
and after the financial year end date with relevant underlying
documentation, including service contracts and service records,
to verify whether the service income had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lui Chi Kin

Practising Certificate Number P06162

Hong Kong, 7 June 2017

NEREEFENEHET RMABECHAH
BMEAMBBRNETERERZER
HAmERERETFE - BRIPEARIER
TEAHFARBEBRULEEER IRNBEAN
BRAT HMBREBELEEETAER
HOATRERBBURARAT U FTFTEHE
MamAERBBEFRE SURMAEN
BB RS PR FEE-

ERLEREEEHMERRERAA
E2E 3]

=ERE

I EERIEP06162

B 20176 A7H

>
4
4
c
>
—
~
m
)
o
=
N
=t
N
N
(=}
e
g
i
+
Ed




74

[2 373 B E W H(K AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

»‘/33 (=] :—Eﬁl&ﬁni’%

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

Revenue

Cost of services Rl 75 B AR
Gross profit = 7
Other income and gains E A YA R M 2 7
General operating expenses —REEHAE
Listing expenses EmX
Finance costs &l & B AR 8
Profit before income tax BR P 18 Bt Al 8 R 9
Income tax expense P55t < 10
Profit for the year and total FRENREAATEESA
comprehensive income for EBiEFREZEK AR
the year attributable to owners
of the Company
Earnings per share SREF 13
— Basic —H AR
— Diluted — s

2017
2017 &
HK$’000

FTER

467,513

(400,175)

67,338
783
(42,070)

(10,387)
(2,389)

13,275

(4,596)

HK1.90 cents
AL

HK1.90 cents
A Al

2016
20164
HK$'000
F#E T

449,758

(381,282)

68,476

836
(39,708)
(3,686)
(2,332)

HK4.18 cents
A Il

HK4.18 cents
A Il



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A A W 555K D %

As at 31 March 2017 72017434318
I @4 @@

2016 =
20164 £
Notes HK$'000 >
B 7 T T =
m
3
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER =
Non-current assets kRBEE 5
Property, plant and equipment LEN N 14 LWL 37,301 %
N
Current assets RBEE =
Inventories & 15 30 27 _};.
Trade receivables g 5 e R E 16 82,087 74,014 &
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables F8 14 3IE « 24 K #
H fih fE W SR 1B 17 5,681 5,609
Tax recoverable A Yz [B] B 18 493 S
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREZEED 71,416 22,410
159,707 102,065
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables 2 5 FE N RIE 18 12,154 10,829
Accruals, deposits and other payables EirER ek
H b &S R IE 18 42,568 33,372
Bank borrowings |RITIE K 19 39,643 55,380
Tax payable & 35 18 — 2,445
94,365 102,026
Net current assets RBEETFH 65,342 39
Total assets less current liabilities HMEERARBARE 101,051 37,340
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Provision for long service payments RHER®E < BE 20 8,553 7,643
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEFRE A & 21 878 941
9,431 8,584
Net assets BEE 91,620 28,756
EQUITY EE
Share capital A% 7 22 6,000 =
Reserves B 23 85,620 28,756
Total equity R 91,620 28,756

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 143 were H74BEFI143EMEB 2R BRHREER
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 7 June 20176 A7B # & £ & #b & M4 7%

2017 and are signed on its behalf by: WEHTIHESREKES:
Ng Sing Mui Sze Tan Nei
REN i 73 e
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A 7 BE i 52 B 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

Share
capital
TS
HK$'000

FibT

Share

premium*

R EE"

HK$'000
THEL
(note 23)
(B #E23)

Retained
profits* Total
REER* Azt
HK$'000  HK$'000
THET TR

Merger Share option
reserve* reserve*
EHRE BRERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEE  TER
(note 23) (note 23)
(Fs23)  (BfEE23)

At 1 April 2015 R20155481H1 — = 20,927 —  (10,985) 9,942
Profit for the year and total FREMERER

comprehensive income for the 2EBREE

year _ — — — 18814 18814
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April R2016F3A318 K

2016 201654 H1H = = 20,927 — 7,829 28,756
Profit for the year and total ERRMNRERN

comprehensive income for the 2EBREE

year — — — — 8,679 8,679
Issuance of shares upon the group 7 & Bl E A 14 %17

reorganisation (note 22 (b)) Rt (B 2 22(b)) 10 — (10) — — —
Capitalisation issue (note 22 (c)) BRI

(FF5E22(0)) 4,490 (4,490) = = — —

Shares issued under public offerand AR E R ALEE

placing (note 22 (d)) TZEBTRR

(P& 22(d)) 1,500 61,500 = = = 63,000

Share issue expenses BNETHY — (8,833) — — — (8,833)
Recognition of share-based payment % 32 M & {p & & A

expense KR — = — 18 — 18
At 31 March 2017 RW2017%3A31H 6,000 48,177 20,917 18 16,508 91,620

* These reserve balances comprised the reserve account as set out in the — * ZEREEROEGAVBRRRMEREES

consolidated statement of financial position.

-



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ik Bl R R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

2017 2016

2017 £ 20164
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHT T

Cash flows from operating activities RESZEFERETE

>
Z
Z
c
>
-
~
m
-
o
a
N
=t
N
N
S
[y
I
iy
8
E

Profit before income tax & BT 15 %4 BT i A1 13,275 23,586
Adjustments for: A

Written off of trade receivables 55 E 5 FE Wk IE 9 46

Interest expenses FE X 8 2,332

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE BEIEE

plant and equipment 2 B8 (W) 9 (258)

Depreciation e 9 3,450

Share-based compensation VAR 0 R E R 2 f (B 24(i) —
Operating profit before working &EELE AL ER

capital changes 19,147 29,156
Increase in inventories HFEEm €)] (10)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 FE W FIE 1 A0 (8,073) (9,151)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and &~ 30IE - RS K& H M

other receivables JE LSRR I 42 0 (72) (633)
Increase in trade payables B 5 & 3 IE 8 N 1,325 4,235
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, deposits fEZtE A 12 & & HAth

and other payables JE 1~ R IE 38 00, O ) 9,196 (628)
Increase in provision for long service = HA AR 7 & B 45 12 0

payments 9210 1,200
Cash generated from operations K& FERE 22,430 24,169
Interest paid BT F B (2,389) (2,332)
Income tax paid BRAER (7,592) (2,405)
Net cash generated from operating & FZEFELREFE

activities 12,449 19,432
Cash flows from investing activities IR EEE B RERE
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BELERH

equipment (2,425)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME  WE R

plant and equipment F 15 3 1E 309
Net cash used in investing activities R &EEE TR £ FE (2,116)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
fh Bl R R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

Proceeds from bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary
shares

Share issue expenses

Increase in amounts due to related
companies

Cash flows from financing activities @& EFEFEHEHRE

RITE RS HIA
EERITER
BT EBRPTERR

Befn B 1T R X
& 1< BE Bt 2 R) SR IR AL h0

2017 2016
2017 &

20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHB T

260,019
(275,756)

237,013
(248,989)

63,000
(C:R:EE))

38,430

Net cash generated from/(used in) B E EE B (FTH)
financing activities REeFRH

Net increase in cash and cash ReRRSEEYEMNFERE
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at FNEERESEEY

beginning of the year

17,486

Cash and cash equivalents atend of F XBE LR RELEEEY

the year

Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

ReERASESEUEHRI T

Be MRITHEH

71,416




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 31 May 2016 under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 16 March
2017 (the “Listing”).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. Its principal place of business is Unit Nos.
1,2, 3,5 6,7 and 8, 10th Floor, One Midtown, No. 11 Hoi
Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company,
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 32.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Sze's Holdings
Limited (“Sze's Holdings”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and the entire issued share
capital of Sze's Holdings is held by Rich Cheer Development
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong, as the trustee
of a family trust (the “Sze Family Trust”). The Sze Family Trust is
a discretionary trust established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The
beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust included, inter alia, Mr. Sze
Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. Rich Cheer Development Limited
is deemed or taken to be interested in all the shares beneficially
owned by Sze's Holdings.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000") except otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

s 2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMWEBUMBHREERNTSE
é REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B EREAEL]
Z
= 2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs 21 RAFATRKIEITE B
2 %% & Al
CZW In the current year, the Group has applied for the first RAFEE AEBEEXERT
; time the following new standards and amendments issued VhESEAMAS((FEes
@) by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants fAe])Bmme %ﬁ TR K AE
% ("HKICPA"), which are relevant to and effective for the 5] S ER) (& E] T E AR
5 Group's financial statements for the annual period EER2016F4A1BFABZF
z beginning on 1 April 2016. EHMEM M BmE AL R
= 24 S HAR A
L
= HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements EEMBHREE 2012FF2014F
> 2012-2014 Cycle A (B ETA) BE FENHE
‘\i‘ Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative %%A STER] HWERTE
g FE1HE 2 1& uT
= Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable EAeE]R WEREBHEIES
o4 and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation FE1658 & FEZBE
o and Amortisation BHE e &L
) %385 2 1551
>
&l The adoption of these amendments has no material RNZEBITeHAERZBf
impact on the Group's financial statements. BRMEBENERTE -
2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued 22 EHEMEERERZH
but are not yet effective R RBAEBRMBERS
% A
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to T RFIEERNEETBEREE
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but BzERMBEHRENERER
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by EERERM I EBTE
the Group. The Group's current intention is to apply these B BRE LR REBRERV
changes on the date they become effective. ZEEALERNEAEALEEDY
A8 o
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative’ BB e ERl WETE
BT 2AEE]
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax EE @ ER ,ﬁ’dﬁk A5 BB TR
Assets for Unrealised FNR 2B BEFEEE
Losses'
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based payment: EAVEBERE URHODAEH 2
Classification and EAFE2R e F AR AR
Measurement of Share- 2H) M2HHRRHH
Based Payment BB REE?
transactions?
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments? EEMBERE TRIA’
RERIFE IR
(2014%)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with ERPBERE KEFTFPHMEYN
Customers? Z R 5155 1 2
HKFRS 16 Leases® ERAMBRE HE

HERIZE 165
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMWERMBHREEAN(E Z

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) B EHREZEL] @ )%

P

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued 22 EEMEENRERZH i

but are not yet effective (continued) A/ RBAIEBMBERS Q

2 8l () S

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ! B2017F1A1B Sk 2 & B H N

2017 FEHABLER N

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 B2018F 1A 1H 2% FAIHE =

2018 FEABER =

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 B2019F 1 A1B k& MIEH il

2019 FEHBER =
The directors of the Company anticipate that all of the KABIERTEH  FTEEMBER
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group's A A RE B & 5 1R 2 & E HA
accounting policy for the first period beginning after the MAREB@HE - AR a=E
effective date of the pronouncement. The directors of the E SRR A S R N
Company are currently assessing the possible impact of SEEREREEMBEENRY
the new or revised standards on the Group’s financial BB A sE R & - TEH B B %
performance and financial position in the first year of BERETZENZEH I SLKE]

application. Those new or revised HKFRSs that are BEAVBRELERNHINNAT -

expected to have impact on the financial statements are
set out below.

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments EBUBEEEREIR
(2014F)— 2@ T A
HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces new requirements for the FEAB B E R FE95 (2014
classification and measurement of financial assets. Debt F)SAEMEEDHENTEN
instruments that are held within a business model whose MR TE - IRENAEBEEENR
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual e BEEeRENEEEREFES
cash flows (the business model test) and that have MEBTAE(ERELAISE) KA
contractual terms that give rise to cash flows that are EEXEAEEAEMNHMAEER
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal SHMEMNBRERES O KRR
amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow BEHETRAAHYESREEZE
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised ) —RIRE KA E T
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash EEEEANEZAEE MUE
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value through EHReREEHTESMEE
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") if the objective AT e R e REENER
of the entity’s business model is both to hold and collect TEBEAFEFAHMEEEKZS
the contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. ([BRAFE:zAEMEEWE])
Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial HE BRI RVBEZE/ED
recognition to measure equity instruments that are not TAMEEE - Ut EEAFE
held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity AEMEEKRENTIEFIEE
instruments are measured at fair value through profit or EHRTE B EMERNE
loss (“FVTPL"). D TARATFEAAER((EA

FEE ARG E -
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[2 373 B E W H(K AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities
to better reflect their risk management activities in
financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair
value attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 (2014) retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 (2014) would not result in significant impact
on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities based on an analysis of the
Group's financial instruments as at 31 March 2017.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. KB EBMBEREERNTE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) BB EERD]) @
2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued 22 EEMEBEERERZH
but are not yet effective (Continued) A/ RETEBUEBERSE
2 A (@)

EBHERETERFIR
(2014 )— £ G T A (%)
BB RS ERE99(2014
FIMA IR A FEF ABRR
ENFBESREEMAFTNIEL
EEAREEXN(MREEGE
A3 B EERBEEN) MU
FFH—RE RS RTE  AE
BNV BREANE TR E
[RL b I E B o

& B R & % BB 95% (2014
F)HREB G ELFE39%E
TeRMBENER 2BEKETE
BT HERETHEATFEFAERR
NEeEMBERIN MZAGBEER
EREHIIBNATFEES S
BREMEEKESHER  BRIES
EAEKERG TR AIER® -
BN BB B RS LRI FIR
(Q014F)REB BB EFTERIZE39
REBERIERERNEERS M
BEMNMEE -

KARESBEF  RAB BT
HAEER FEIHR (2014F) F & &
BEER2017F3A3MBAEE
EMIASMAAEEEHEE
FeRMABEERNSEELAER

B/ 488
Ea.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL . =5
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) BUHBEBREEDN]D @

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued 2.2

but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach
taken under HKFRS. The standard also significantly
enhances the qualitative and quantitative disclosures
related to revenue.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 15 would not result in significant impact on
amounts reported on the Group’s financial statements.

2
i/ BETEBRUBRE
2 A (@)

EEBUMBHREERFEISHE —
REEFHEH K
HIEFERRE Y — BB K=
HWRIER ZEXENZLRAA
EEEERWZABeBEELE
EEAEERIARETRRE  %e
HRMEHZEEEERRIBRZ
SR ERBAKEBHRE &
B RS ERE 15 IRIT
amERESI(REE B g E
Bl 185 s - BB ST ERE
MEEREGLHORIEERE) -

BEI S R 51557 B KIA

T {8l 25 BB HE AR M s

F—F: BHBREFHAH
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TR ek
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL . =5
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) BUHBEBREEDN]D @

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued 2.2

[2 373 B E W H(K AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the
right-of use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a
present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to
be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or to
exercise an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently.

2 A (@)

EEBUNBHREERFEI165 —
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BAEMBEIREERFE 165 H EX
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B UYHBHEEBEZHEENRS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. KMEABMBREERN(E Z
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) BB REER]D @ §
P
2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued 22 SEHEMEEKERZH i
but are not yet effective (Continued) A/ RETERBUBRE o
% Bl (g0 g
HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued) ERAUBREEIE16% — S
HE &) S
As set out in note 26, the total operating lease WM FE26 AT, - ANEE A FH2017 5&
commitment of the Group in respect of rented premises FIANAREES A AL E &
as at 31 March 2017 amounted to HK$92,000. The THE A 592,000 7T © AR A #
directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of EEFE O ENB BB WMEE
HKFRS 16 would not result in significant impact on the BlEE1es T e W AEBESEEE
Group’s result but expect that the above operating lease EAFE EEHLALERE
commitments will be recognised as right-of-use assets and AEBeEARNEER S HRERE
lease liabilities in the Group's financial statements. REFHEEENHEARE-
The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption KRB ESTE  HWEMIE]
of other new or revised standards would not result in ISR TS EHRE AEEH
significant impact on amounts reported in the Group's MNP ERRMERESBEELEEKX
financial statements. 2 XK
3. REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF 3. EHURZIRGEHESE
PRESENTATION AND PREPARATION
(a) Reorganisation (a) EMA
Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Group BEAEEREHEAR ARG K
Reorganisation”) carried out by the Group in preparation Bl ZER EFmmETZE
for the listing of shares of the Company on the GEM of EsA(EEEAD  AAAR
the Stock Exchange, the Company became the holding 2017F2B17HK AR E EIR
company of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group ETHB AR ZER AR - B
on 17 February 2017. Details of the Group Reorganisation SEEHZHFBIHRAERRE M
are set out in the section headed “History, development T3 B 8 52017F2H288 2 1A
and reorganisation” to the prospectus issued by the EERNIELY ZTREREEA|—
Company dated 28 February 2017. £ o
(b) Basis of presentation (b) 2HE%E
The Group Reorganisation only involved inserting new EFEHEFSNREREARZ
holdings entities at the top of an existing company and MAFTR IR B RS - W & 5| B
has not resulted in any change of economic substances. EEE 2T AEE -
Upon the completion of the Group Reorganisation, the REBSHTRE KQAAHEE
Company holds the entire equity interests, directly or NEEFEAEBRETATNE

indirectly, of companies comprising the Group. I N
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

3. REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION AND PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of presentation (Continued)

Accordingly, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows of the
Group for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 have
been prepared using the principles of merger accounting
as if the current group structure had been in existence
throughout those years, or since their respective dates of
incorporation or establishment of the companies now
comprising the Group, whichever was shorter. The
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 have been prepared to
present the assets and liabilities of the companies now
comprising the Group at that date, as if the current group
structure had been in existence as at that date. The assets
and liabilities of the Group were combined using their
carrying values. All significant intra-group transactions and
balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance which concern the preparation of financial
statements. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis.

3. EAURSHRGRES
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BERGTHER

41 ¥XaHREHEE

4.1 Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred,
in which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group'’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z2017F3A31H8 LFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1

4.2

4.3

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may
be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if
any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

4, ERETTHE @
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4.3
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. T AEIHBE (&)

43 Y% - -BERRE @

4.3 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

4.4

Depreciation on the following property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line basis to
allocate their costs less their residual value over their
estimated useful lives. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date. The useful lives are as
follows:

W% BERERRENTER
HEFERFRAERBERED
FEEMABRIGEETE - EH
FH MHKEELRFNEZINER
SRR AR (ER) &
RERMT

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of lease et MET HEH
Leasehold improvement 15% HEEB 15%
Office furniture and equipment 15-25% WARE N &G 15-25%
Machinery and equipment 25% HEs R i 25%
Motor vehicles 25% R 25%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term
of the lease.

4.4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

()

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is
a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods to customers (trade
debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset and that event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
and directly reduces the carrying amount of financial
asset when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were
incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and
financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. E A& 5 BR @) ’%’
c
4.5 Financial instruments (Continued) 45 £ T B ) i
(vi) Derecognition (vi) #IFREER g
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the AEBEEeMEES W =
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation ZAKRBEEREAKER S
to the financial asset expire or when the financial Ewm e mEEDEE N
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets BEZEZRBEE A% §
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with B 395 & R IEERIE _E_
HKAS 39. B RIERSRMEE - -
E- 4
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the CRABERBEBAE O
obligation specified in the relevant contract is BRI ERR
discharged, cancelled or expires. TR o
4.6 Inventories 46 FE
Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and FEVRIZRRAER  ERBIEX
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value. AEAEIRFEEREPNRES
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion MR K ABITEMBFRBRA -
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to EBHKARBEEXAEIRAME
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated RESRAEMRDEENEMK
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value R A INEFEEASTE - 7]
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary BN FEREATEBBEHRNM
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to HEBRETHEVEN G
make the sale. PN
4.7 Cash and cash equivalents 47 BeRREZEEY

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represented cash and bank balances.

REaReREXRT RE kB
TEEVERERE RRTER-




94

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. E K€ HZE @)

4.8 Revenue recognition 48 WmER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration W e Wk MR E R FERT
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable E ERREBBEEPHERED
for sales of goods and services in the normal course of K Br 7% FE UL FRIE - 0k B0 & AT
business, net of rebates and discounts. B

The Group recognised revenue when the amount of WEH SRR SRTE - AEKHE
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that F & AR AT ﬁz//u,)\?i BATaEARE
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and BN ELROBEBIEZEER K&
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s BRI

activities as described below:
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(i)  service income is recognised in the accounting i REWATREREN 2
period in which the services are rendered. For the TR - AERER
service contract relates to routine services, the BzREEHME RIS
service income will be recognised on a straight-line ARESRERETIESN
basis over the contract terms as the work is AR EEER - IR E
performed. For services that are provided on ad-hoc EREZREME - REW
basis, service income is recognised upon completion AR 58 K 1R 4 3% BR B AR 7S
of the provision of such ad-hoc services. BHER -

(i) interest income is accrued on a time basis on the (i) FBUWAZBERNEER
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate. AEBASIREHEEER

i
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. E K€ BZE @)

4.9 Income taxes

4.9 FREH

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the
asset or liability is realised or settled and that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 i R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods.
Liabilities recognised in respect of long service
payment are measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided
by employees up to the reporting date. The cost of
providing the long service payment liabilities is
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The long service payment
liabilities are determined by the recent remuneration
of the eligible employees based on the requirement
of Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, and is
reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group's
retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. E K€ BZE @)

ANMFETREERESE

4.11Impairment loss of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and interests in subsidiaries
are subject to impairment testing.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of these assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets’ carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

4.12Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 i R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. E K€ HZE @)

A13BERIARERE

4.13Provisions and contingent liabilities

[2 373 B E W H(K AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive as
a result of a past event, which will probably result in an
outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

4.14Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

The fair value of services received is determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
under the heading of share option reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in the share
option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.15Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the parent of the
Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

s 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. E K= IEE @)
4
(%2
% 4.15Related parties (Continued) 41588 7 ()
T
o (b)  (Continued) by (%)
@)
% (vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by Vi) ZEEBIX@F#HA A
; a person identified in (a). TS FES o
o
% (vii) A person identified in (a)i) has significant (vii) (a)(')q: B8 BB A j
= influence over the entity or is a member of the HZERBAEERY
% key management personnel of the entity (or NKBEZEE (qu,(,E\
ro_ of a parent of the entity). BOBRA)TEERE
z KB -
=
O (viii) The entity, or any member of a group of (i) ZERBXZERE —
F which it is a part, provides key management nﬁﬁ SEEMKE
?‘% personnel services to the Group or to the NI G NE SN 1N =S
= parent of the Group. BESARREETEE
b BABR -
=
= Close members of the family of a person are those family E—AITHERREKXEIRTERH
> members who may be expected to influence, or be AIEZANTHERETEEX
= influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity REERIZALTFENEBAR
and include: BXKE B :
()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic () #ZBANTHTF &b B
partner; REHAE
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic (il =B ANLTHES K E
partner; and BrFx: &
(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse (i) ZBHANLTHZBALTHR
or domestic partner. BRREHBEHZEEA -
4.16 Segment reporting 416 7 SR E
The Group identifies operating segments and prepares AREBERBERANITESIERA
segment information based on the regular internal EREEBMAEBEEBELNE
financial information reported to the executive directors BAOMERBNZEELRENT
for their decisions about resources allocation to the HQ A SR EA 15 B R - i e B B AR
Group’s business components and for their review of the DHLEEDIHLER c ABITE
performance of those components. The business FER AN BEERANNED
components in the internal financial information reported BURBREBRFZEXEKET -

to the executive directors are determined following the
Group's major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting REEBRESFSE Ejﬁ%iﬁttﬁ ElIES
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” AR R = R S
are the same as those used in its financial statements BB ERSE ;EUE'(B’E %.i B
prepared under HKFRSs. BHREERRET B REAMIKA

B
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year is set out below.

5.1 Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives are different to
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
in accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 4.3.
The estimated useful lives reflect the director’s estimates
of the periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 i R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z2017F3A31H8 LFE

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognised liabilities for anticipated tax issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will affect the income tax and deferred
tax provision in the period in which such determination is
made.

= 5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. EXGRAFRER@®
é ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
4
= 5.2 Impairment of trade and other receivables 5.2 E5 &k H i EWKIERE
E The Group makes provision for impairment losses on trade AREBEREE S K E M FERR
é and other receivables based on assessments of the BRI BN FE(EESES
T recoverability of the trade and other receivables, including ANEREE2EBERTIEL B
% the current creditworthiness and the past collection B REMEWFIBTIEREE
2 history of each debtor. Impairments arise where events or BRE NMEESHRIBRED
% changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may 78 N #5 8% 0] B2 S AT Uk [ B B B
o not be collectible. The identification of impairment losses IBRE - S8 5 & H i e wx
E on trade and other receivables requires the use of TE IR R B E 1B R E R A &
= judgement and estimates. Where the actual result is et - WEBSEREBRRNREE
o different from the original estimate, such difference will o RlEEe Y EZEFREME
‘\i' impact the carrying value of the trade and other WHIENEmERSEE (AT FE
g receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in HRIEF X - HMEBAMBIRR
= which such estimate has been changed. If the financial AL EEE AL D55 BT BE
% conditions of the debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in EHIREEINEE -
af an impairment of their ability to make payments,
?E additional provision may be required.
I
5.3 Provisions 5.3 #&1&
When there is a probability that an outflow of economic ERAEGHELRASE M
benefits will occur due to a present obligation resulting BEmgENS R R e
from a past event, and that amount is reasonably WMEEGEE RIS HRERER
estimate, a corresponding amount of provision is HERESE - A TERK
recognised in the financial statements. However, no D Tl = = ) N T O
provision is recognised for costs that need to be incurred o
to operate in the future.
5.4 Income taxes 54 FiiE®

AEBBAMBEEMER -BXE
FSHEERFERERNHE -
FEXTBETFEZRHREK
REABEMEETHR K
SEERHBRINHES T
HEtEREARBEE - WZF
FHENRRRBERE BN V5H
ABETHE MERERBTEE
7 T B 0 P S R B A AR IR
S



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

5.5 Share-based compensation

The fair value of share options granted is calculated using
binomial pricing model and based on the Group's
management'’s significant inputs into calculation, including
estimated lives of share option granted, exercise restriction
and behavioural consideration, the volatility of share price
and weighted average share price of the share options
granted. Furthermore, the calculation assumes no future
dividends.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, who are the chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance,
is the financial information of the Group as a whole as reported
under HKFRSs. The Group is currently organised into two
operating divisions as follows:

(1) Environmental hygiene and related services
(2)  Airline catering support services

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
tax recoverable and cash and cash equivalents.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than bank borrowings and tax payable.

— all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments other
than directors’ emoluments, finance costs, listing
expenses, income tax expense and certain other expenses
incurred for strategic planning by the Group.

5.

BEAEEFTREBR@®

55 URGAERNFEE

REBERENQXIFEDREARE
BEEBHEBAZCEEZEH A
BE(BERLBRENGF
B 1TERS RITARE BH
1B %% B I 1% B8 i o o4 <7
BEMER) ER-BXEE
BAFHE - B A RERRLE
RSB -

7 & & #

AARBATEF(AMEBZLERRK
F)ERUEDEERLFERRH
ERTREBEEZEMBHREERAZR
AEBEERBYBEH - AKBERD B
AT MEZLE D :

() REHEREBRE
2 MEEKIFRE

RERIBRARENBEDEE
i

— BAKREHREARE KRS FE
MINFBEEEDDBREEEED

7B e

— KBRRTERREMARBINIAEE

BANEKELEDES -

— KREZH BEXLS LHH
X FRHAXRAEE R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Revenue I 2=

Sales to external customers HINEEFHE
Segment results DEEE
Directors’ emoluments EEMe

Listing expenses FHRAX
Finance costs LR =D N

Profit before income tax B BT 15 B4 A1 4 £
Income tax expense FriS®i A =
Profit for the year F A g A
Segment assets DEEE

Tax recoverable Al Y [B] 7 I8
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBRSEEY
Total assets BEE

Segment liabilities DEEE

Bank borrowings

Total liabilities

Other segment information
Depreciation
Additions to non-current assets

HAtt 7 #& %
wE
FER BB E BN

6. TEER @)

BZE2017F3A31BLEFE

Environmental
hygiene and
related services

BREHE
X 18 A AR %5
HK$°000
FER

432,619

30,970

120,038

Airline
catering
support
services
2= B8
X R
HK$'000
TET

34,894

3,977

Total

.
48 =t

HK$'000

FTERT

467,513

34,947

(8.896)
(10,387)
(2,389)

13,275

(4,596)

8,679

123,507
493
71,416

195,416

(ZALY
39,643

103,796




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oHEE @ =
zZ
c
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZE2016F3A31MBLFE =
~
Airline S
Environmental catering =5
hygiene and support =
related services services Total N
RBE/E =& R S
K 48 8 i 7 X FER T HEr :é
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 sy
FAT FHET FHT =
Revenue I 2=
Sales to external customers HINBRFHE 415,275 34,483 449,758
Segment results D EHELE 31,937 5,055 36,992
Directors’ emoluments e (7,388)
Listing expenses EWRAX (3,686)
Finance costs B & fK AR (2,332)
Profit before income tax B P15 5 A 2 A 23,586
Income tax expense P55t X (4,772)
Profit for the year F R Tl 18,814
Segment assets D EPE E 113,404 3,547 116,951
Tax recoverable AJ 45 [ 7% 18 5
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBEEEEY 22,410
Total assets BEE 139,366
Segment liabilities HEEE 50,521 2,264 52,785
Bank borrowings BITE K 55,380
Tax payable JE& 1~ B¢ I8 2,445

Total liabilities BEET 110,610

Other segment information Hth 5 & H
Depreciation e (3,450) — (3,450)
Additions to non-current assets 3 i B) & 2= 1L N 2,425 — 2,425




106

[2 373 B EIWFZH(K AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal place of the Group’s operation is in Hong Kong. For
the purpose of segment information disclosures under HKFRS 8,
Hong Kong is regarded as the Group’s place of domicile. All the
Group's revenue and non-current assets are attributable to
Hong Kong for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016,
being the single geographical region.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided. All the Group’s revenue
from external customers is sourced from Hong Kong.

Revenue from customers which individually contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue, are set out as follows:

EPAMIRETD
EFB(KEE2)

Customer A (note 1)
Customer B (note 2)

2 2 E R m)

KRANRBREEBRRAR  AEBEXE
KEMMRE D - IR BEEBSM R
EEBIESHETOBERBEEMS -
ERERAAEEMEH  AEEE
Z2017F M20165F3A31H EFER
FrEW=RIERDEEHTRE E i

B IR AL B DA BT AR 5 AR A5 2 Ak /5 K
Be AKBRBINBEFHOMAE W
BRNEE

ERIME AN ERBWE10%HIA FHEP
WasEk s mT

2017 2016
2017 5 20164F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET

176,065 167,547
54,469 52,397

Notes:

1) It is a customer for environmental hygiene and related services for the
years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

2) For the year ended 31 March 2017, revenue of HK$27,701,000 was
generated from environmental hygiene and related services while
revenue of HK$26,768,000 was generated from airline catering
support services for this customer.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, revenue of HK$25,814,000 was
generated from environmental hygiene and related services while
revenue of HK$26,583,000 was generated from airline catering
support services for this customer.

(1)  HABZE2017FK2016F3A31ALFE
EIRSE T RABBRE R R P -

) HBE2017F3A31HLEHFE K&
27,701,000 70 2k B IRIB & &£ M AE R
% - MUkz826,768,000/8 703k B AIARE P
REHMEERTIFRE ©

HZE2016F3A318ILFE » WHF
25,814,000 LK B IR EA £ LA R
7 MUkzE26,583,000/8 TR B RIAR S
RENMEERT IR ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. W% REMK AR WE

Revenue represents the income from environmental hygiene WRHIEIRHIREHEE LHBERE UKL

and related services and airline catering support services MEBR T IFRISIEEWA -

rendered.

(@) The Group's revenue recognised during the year are as (@) AEEBERFRNERHOWKRZINOT :
follows:

2017 2016

>
Z
Z
C
>
~
~
m
]
S
=5
N
=
N
N
(—]
3
ey
2017 20164 g

HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHT

Revenue: W25
Environmental hygiene and IRIB 874 R B R 75
related services 432,619 415,275
Airline catering support services MEERZ RS 34,894 34,483
467,513 449,758
(b) The Group’s other income and gains recognised during by AEBRFABREMKAR
the year are as follows: &=y U

2017 2016
2017 5 20164
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F& T

Other income and gains: Hu g A RS
Gain on disposal of property, plant  HEW ¥ « BE KRB H

and equipment FT 5 W2
Sales of scrap materials B2} &

Sundry income A A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

8. FINANCE COSTS

8. RMERA

2017 2016
2017 & 20164
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Interest on bank borrowings

RITIE A B 2,389

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

9. BRETSBiAE A

Profit before income tax for the year has been arrived at after ERNBMMERATEN D& B (5t

charging/(crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses

Depreciation

Written off of trade receivables

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases:

A)

2017 2016
2017 5 20164

HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET

% R B 560

ERERAINEFEEKA
14,647
ne 3,448
M iE B 5 e W E —
LEME BMERZENS
Eia, () 17

REBRERTHREBEEMNK :

— Land and buildings for staff —FAREIFER L RIEF
quarters
Employee costs (including directors’ BERAN(BIEESHH) :
remuneration):
— Wages, salaries and allowances —I% Hekmih 299,676
— Retirement scheme contributions —RREF B3R 13,232
— Share-based compensation —ARR D BEEREE 18

312,926 310,917




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FTEBHAX
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% PRREFEAR BEMEHRE KRG
on the estimated assessable profits for both years. JE R BB 89 16.5% Bt Rt IR B 45 -

2017 2016
2017 5 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET

>
4
4
c
>
-
=
m
el
o
a
)
=t
N
)
S
L
S
iy
i
#

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax B EA % 18 — & i FI 15 54 4,367
Current tax — under-provision in prior Bl EAF{ I8 — i@ & F E B E T 2

years 292
Deferred taxation (note 21) EAET A (M RE21) ()
4,596
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting FEME X BiRERAM Rt E et
profit at applicable tax rate: S5 F ¥ BE -

2017 2016
2017 5 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTH T T T

Profit before income tax B BT 15 %% Bl V1 13,275

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 16.5% 1%16.5% (20164 : 16.5%)
(2016: 16.5%) B 38 PR B R B

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ B #038 B s B Fi 75 57 28

Recognisition of temporary differences #5285t Ail &1 7 7E 22 B 2 By = 28
previously not recognised

Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR

Utilisation of tax loss previously not BALANMABROBIEER
recognised

Tax concession MIBERR

Income tax expense P15 Bt 5 <
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 1. EERSHREEEM S
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) ==HM

Salaries,
discretionary  Retirement
bonus, allowances scheme  Share-based
Fees and other benefits contributions compensation Total

& B RARGE LR 15 &
e WHREMGER R ERNEH &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FTER TERT TERT TE=R

Year ended 31 March BZE20175F
2017 3A31HLLEE

1373 B EINFHE AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

Executive directors: HITES:
Madam Ng Sing Mui REEZ L
Ms. Sze Tan Nei 1% 9 22 +
Mr. Ang Ming Wah HAELAE
Mr. Sze Wai Lun e 18 f 55 4
Independent non- BYFHTES:
executive directors:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor RIFEEE
Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan EEELE
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung BERLE
Mr. Wong Yat Sum HEoLEAE
Mr. Chan Chun Sing PR iR 22 2 A4
Total BEr

Year ended 31 March HZ20165F

2016 3ANALEE

Executive directors: HITES :

Madam Ng Sing Mui REELT — 2,756 138 — 2,894
Ms. Sze Tan Nei M e £ — 2,205 110 — 2,315
Mr. Ang Ming Wah HERRELAE — 1,334 18 — 1,352
Mr. Sze Wai Lun MEREE — 809 18 — 827
Total aEr — 7,104 284 — 7,388

No directors waived any emoluments during the year HE2017FE3A31BIFEE - HES

ended 31 March 2017 (2016: nil). EMELAEBE (201645 : ) -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2016: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in (a) above. The
emoluments of the remaining one (2016: one) individual
was as follows:

Salaries, discretionary bonus,
allowances and other benefits

Retirement scheme contribution

Share-based compensation

H 18 7
RRET EI R

e BHIBEA Mk

VAR A0 45 E it ey 3 B

M. BEEREREEEM S w

(b) HUESHAL

AEEBRANEaME ALTHR:
POz (20164 « POfiL) B R AIE
FOHEMEHERN EXX@B-%HT
—{z(2016%F « —f1) ALHBI &
NN

2017 2016
2017 &

20164
HK$'000
T T

HK$’000
TER

The remuneration paid to each of the above non-director
highest paid individual was within the following
emolument band:

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000

ENTEXEFEFESHFAL
EEBN R T2 &6 E

2017 2016

2017 20164
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AE A

500,001 % 7T & 1,000,000 7T

During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company or any of the five highest paid employees as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

HZE2017F 201653 A31H I
FE AEEBTENAQRGNE
ERIA—CAUESHFALX
EB - EAEMASMALRE
EFMRE S ERBEREE -

>
z
Z
=
>
—
~
m
o
©
a1
S
S
N
N
S
L
<
i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S 1" EERERAEEEM2w
EMOLUMENTS (cContinued)

(c) Senior management’s emolument (c) ENEEEME
The remuneration paid to the senior management of the FAERNTAEERSRERE
Group (other than the directors as disclosed in note 11(a) (EXHFENMN@QFEENEERKR
above) for the year fell within the following bands: SNBIERI N R T3 EE -

2017 2016
2017 5 20164
Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE A B

Nil to HK$500,000 = £ 500,000/ 7T
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,0018 7t = 1,000,000 % 7T

[2 373 B E W H(K AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

12. DIVIDEND 12. R E
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during R2016F5 A3 A ([FMAK B ED
the period from 31 May 2016 (the “date of incorporation”), to F2017F3A31H ILBIH - AR AL
31 March 2017 nor has any dividend been declared since the BRNKEREMBKE  BREHR

end of the reporting period. AR IR B R A A% 8 o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BRER Z
Z

c

The calculation of earnings per share is based on the earnings FRERNDREAEBERE AR EH =
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted BEABERT DT B INRE E
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the respective FTHHYEE o g
; 35
periods. N
2

N

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based GRERNLGBERNTIREBEUATEER -
on the following information: = E
z

2017 2016 e

2017 5 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT

Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of R RIER A KL A
the Company

Shares Bz 13
Weighted average number of ordinary Bt st & & I & A & #5% & 7| 59
shares for the purpose of basic and T 58 A% 0 E 15 EX

diluted earnings per share 456,164 450,000
Weighted average of 450,000,000 ordinary shares for the year HE2016F3A3MH ILFE > MiEF
ended 31 March 2016, being the number of ordinary shares in #5450,000,000 I & 38 A& (BN AR 3% B 5
issue pursuant to the Group Reorganisation as set out in note 22(0) Tl 52 B E 48 I B BE T 5E22(0) P
22(b) and the immediately after the completion of capitalisation HERMLBITEKED BT BIRE
issue as set out in note 22(c), deemed to have been effective on B)RABE2015F4 8 1HEER -

1 April 2015.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ERBERENTEBS AN ERNFE
ended 31 March 2017 does not assume the exercise of the BHmE WE E2017F3A8318 IFF
Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise price of ENERESERBAOTE T ERRERT
those options is higher than the average market price for shares BZRR R E RATE A B ARAE o

for the year.

Diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings HRAEERNFRATEEEBRELR
per share for the year ended 31 March 2016 as the Group had B B E2016FE3A318 I FE &

no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the year. Sh#HERFEGRERBFER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ BEREE

[2 373 B E W H(K AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

Leasehold
improvement

HEEE
HK$'000
THET

Leasehold
land and
buildings
HELH

KT
HK$'000
FHET

Office
furniture
and
equipment
o RE
R#BE
HK$'000
FHET

Machinery
and
equipment
HER
RE
HK$'000
TET

Motor
vehicles

"=
HK$'000
TET

Total

P

=
HK$'000
THETT

Cost JoN
At 1 April 2015 R2015%F4 /818 1,970 34,572 1,942 10,305 8,969 57,758
Additions NE — — 90 1,429 906 2,425
Disposals 0 & — — (146) (3,046)  (512) (3,704)
At 31 March 2016 and ®K2016%3 A31H

1 April 2016 &20165F4A1H 1,970 34,572 1,886 8,688 9,363 56,479
Additions NE = = 357 871 645 1,873
Disposals He — — (6) (624) — (630)
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A31H 1,970 34,572 2,237 8,935 10,008 57,722
Accumulated deprecation E:tHifE
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4 81 H 657 2,408 1,282 8,702 6,332 19,381
Provided for the year FRNEE 295 997 155 949 1,054 3,450
Written back on disposals 74 ) & B # [0 — — (140) (3,001) (512) (3,653)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 R2016F3 A31H

April 2016 20164 H1H 952 3,405 1,297 6,650 6,874 19,178
Provided for the year FREE 295 997 190 934 1,032 3,448
Written back on disposals 7 Hi & B 4 @] — — (6) (607) — (613)
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A31H 1,247 4,402 1,481 6,977 7,906 22,013
Net carrying amount BRE R E
At 31 March 2017 M201743 A31H 723 30,170 756 1,958 2,102 35,709
At 31 March 2016 R2016F3 A31H 1,018 31,167 589 2,038 2,489 37,301
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. ¥ % - i E & % (@)

The Group used the leasehold land and buildings (the “Property”)
with carrying amount of HK$30,170,000 as at 31 March 2017
(2016: HK$31,167,200) as head office (“Actual Use”). The
permitted use as specified in each of the relevant (i) conditions
of sale and government grant; (ii) occupation permit; (iii) deeds
of mutual covenant is (a) for industrial purpose; (b) as
workshops for non-domestic use; (c) for use as prescribed by
the government lease and the occupation permit respectively.
Accordingly, the Actual Use did not comply with the permitted
use as set out above and is in breach of section 25(1) of the
Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
for failure to notify the Buildings Department regarding the
change of land use.

The Group has made an application for a lifetime waiver from
the relevant government departments to release user restriction
of the leasehold land and buildings from industrial to office for
headquarters or back-office operations. As at 31 March 2017
and up to the date of the approval of theses financial
statements, the vetting of the waiver application by the relevant
government departments was still in progress. As at 31 March
2017 and 2016, pursuant to section 40(2) of the Buildings
Ordinance, the maximum exposure of the fine as a result of the
aforesaid matter is approximately HK$100,000 (note 28).

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the leasehold land and
buildings are pledged as securities for the Group’s bank
borrowings and banking facilities granted to the Group (note
19).

M2017F3A31H A& B F A
M {E /430,170,000 7T(20164F :
31,167,200 70) MM & + i R B F
[ZwEDERERER(ERH
B EREBASEOEERBINFRY
& A (i) ik A RF AT B ¢ (i) 2P A1 it
Az AEQ@QIERE  bIFE
EABRHIS OBRNEE RGBT
AFERAEMAz Bt BEEARYL
RETFTEXFEONELERSE BEX
R IHAREHNSEEEIHEER
MEREEEGF123FEEYIEH
55 25(1) 15 o

AEBCRAHBRFIMIERBFREEH
% NeBRBAETHWREETIEATLE
MBHRTBEREENERARG - R
20173 A31TBREEARY KR KR #E
HEBHHE - MEBRTHBPIEIHR e R
2 THEDE# 1T - 20174 N 20164F
3A318 - BIBFFEEMIKG E40Q)1%
FHiER &= E £ 4 /5100,0007% T
(P 5E28) »

MR20174F K&2016F3HA31H  HE +
WREFHARERAEEEITER
DAEEER ZBITEE (HE19) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

15. INVENTORIES

Consumables, at cost JHFEm (R A)

15. &8

2017 2016
2017 & 20164
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FAT

30

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables B 5 W 8

. BEZ BRI

2017 2016
2017 & 20164
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FAT

82,087 74,014

Trade receivables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for
both years.

The credit terms of the trade receivables are ranged from 0 to
75 days (2016: 0 to 75 days) from the date of billing.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice
date, as of the end of the reporting period is as follow:

Within one month —EAR
One to three months —==f@A
More than three months =@AMNE

R - B 5 8 M BE b8 5T
HHE -

EoRERFENEESEHAZAEE
NFORZETSK (20164 : ORETSK) o

BERSHMR ERBZAHNES
FEUGR IR IR B D AT AR T

2017 2016
2017 5 20164

HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TAET

40,285 38,887
37,098 33,094
4,704 2,033

82,087
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing of trade receivables which are past due but no
impaired are as follow:

Neither past due nor impaired AR 8 B SO (B
B 8 HiE KRR E
BELR—EA
BH—==@EA
BE=E AN E

Past due but not impaired:
Less than one month past due
One to three months past due
More than three months past due

6. EZEWRE @

EBRBERRRENESERFKED
ERERINT ¢

2017 2016
2017 5 20164

HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT TAET

40,775

36,573

2,458
2,281

41,312

82,087

Trade receivables of HK$41,312,000 were past due but not
impaired as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$34,724,000) related
to a number of customers that have a good track record of
repayment with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company believes that no impairment provision
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered to be fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has written
off trade receivables of HK$46,000 in respect of the trade debts
due from customers which are considered as uncollectable.

As at 31 March 2017, trade receivables of HK$7,061,000 were
subject to assignment and charge arrangement (2016:
HK$7,614,000) in which specific debtors are assigned to the
bank to secure the bank loans to the Group and trade
receivables of HK$16,079,000 (2016: HK$14,429,000) have
been pledged to banks to secure the banking facilities of the
Group.

MR2017F3A831H B 5 E kR HE
41,312,000 7T (2016 F : 34,724,000
BLIEBEBEAMKRRE HEZH
ERTERAECHNAEEBERP
B -ERNBERLR ARAEER
B RZEESOAERRERE
BEEESETESEREE ZEEH
AR A2EINE - & B I &5t
ZEEBRFREMERY -

HE2016F3831BILFE - KEE
EREEAAEIRENEREFRPE S
B S 5B 2 5 W3k I 46,0008 7T ©

MR2017F3A31H B 5 E K R E
7,061,000 T (2016 4F : 7,614,000
BL)XEERBLETHEMAR - H
FOEMBTEEETEEUASASE
EESETER MBS EKRKE
16,079,000 7T (2016 £ : 14,429,000
BT)BEEBTFRTEAAEERTT
BLE R ELR

>
4
Z
c
>
-
~
m
-
o
a
N
=t
N
N
S
=
I
iy
i
E




118

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 17. B RIE REREMEW
RECEIVABLES FIE

2017 2016
2017 5 20164

HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAET

Prepayments for consumables YH R G K TE A 3RE 35

Other prepayments H b 8 5 5IE
Deposits b7k
Other receivables H {th j& W 508
18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18. ES RHMENRE

2017 2016
2017 5 20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T

1373 B EINFHE AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

Trade payables (note (a)) Z 5 8 (i) 12,154

Accrued staff costs FEET B TR A 25,703
Other accrued expenses (note (b)) H b e 5+ 5 2 (Bf 5E (b)) 15,185
Other payables H b fE 5 5B 1,158

Deposits bioec 522

42,568
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 18. EZRHEMENRE@ Z
é

Notes: B 5 - =
A

(a) Trade payables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both years. (a) PREEE B ENZESUBE T 8
= =5

N

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date as of HEREAR EARBEZEAHNEIE g

the end of the reporting period is as follow: NRBHRESTAT - -

=)

2017 2016 =

2017 FF 20164F oy

HK$000 HK$'000 #

FTHET THT

Within one month —@ AR 12,003 10,536
One to three months —Z={@A 129
More than three months =@ B L 22

(b)  Asat 31 March 2017, other accrued expenses mainly represented the (b) H20174F3A31H  HihEAHETE
accrued listing expenses and accrued untaken paid leave (2016: R EMHIREFAZASTHR
accrued untaken paid leave). B (20164 : Bt AZ A HFEBE) -

19. BANK BORROWINGS 19. SRITER
2017 2016
2017 20164F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#& T F& T
Bank loans RITE R 39,643

All of the Group's bank loans as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 AEBER2017F R2016F3H31H K

contained a repayable on demand clause and therefore the PIBRITERHARERKERKRR

entire bank loan balances for both years have been classified as REFENEHBRTERERD

current liabilities. DEAERBARL-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

19. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 19. SRITBE K@)
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors ERAEENT BRI RRRES
of the Company considered it is unlikely that the banks will RAE-RITTARATRERBEERZAE
exercise its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The Ko ARRERRE RITEFRBRE
directors of the Company considered that the bank loans will be ERWmEmEmstE B EE-
repaid in accordance with the scheduled payment dates set out TERBUAZAHVETHANEITER
in the loan agreements. An analysis of the bank loans in DT

accordance with the contractual repayment terms are
summarised in the table below:

2017 2016
2017 5 20164

HK$°000 HK$'000
TRERT TAET

Analysed based on scheduled REERBRAMWE
repayment terms set out in the BREETHD N
loan agreements, into:

[2 373 B EIWFZH(K AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

Within one year R—FR
In the second year REZF
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FFEZERLF(BREEEMSE)
Beyond five years AFE
Notes: Bt 3
(i) Al bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. As at 31 (i) FTARITERABITIIER - 7201743
March 2017, the bank borrowings carried floating interest rates A318  RITERAMAFEELEED R
ranged from 2.60% to 5.50% (2016: ranged from 1.95% to 5.50%) N & F260FE =550F (20164 « N
per annum. F1.95EE550F) °
(i) Asat 31 March 2017 and 2016, the banking facilities granted to the (i)  M2017%F 201653 A31H0  AEEE
Group were secured by the following: BRORITEEHRTISEER
(@)  properties held by the Group and related parties; (@) AEBRBEBITEIEWE:
(b)  unlimited cross corporate guarantee executed by a related (b)y BEBAREIHERSMEE AR
company; IR
(0) unlimited personal guarantees executed by directors of the (0 ARREEREWZT KNIk
Company, Madam Ng Sing Mui and Ms. Sze Tan Nei; 27+ T ) BR HIE A EAR
(d)  assignment of rental proceeds of properties held by a related (d) BREBAFMFDENEEMN
company, of which the director of the Company, Madam Ng BRE B ARAIEERE

Sing Mui, has beneficial interest ; BLTHEEEEERS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

19. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 19. RITER @
Notes: (Continued) MisE : (48)
(i) (Continued) iy (&)

(e) assignment and charge of trade receivables from assigned
debtors of the Group. As at 31 March 2017, trade receivables
of HK$7,061,000 (2016: HK$7,614,000) (note 16) of the
Group were subject to such assignment and charge; and

() trade receivables of HK$16,079,000 as at 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK$14,429,000) (note 16) of the Group.

(e)

[ RN R ) R
RIBHE S EWRIE- 12017
FIANA - AKEENEZENR
X 187,061,000 T (20164 :
7,614,000 7o) (M 7 16) Z 5% &
EEREEAAR &

R2017F3A31EMALEE S
& U 3 18 16,079,000 JT (2016
£ 114,429,000 7T) (FifsE16) °

20. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS 20. RHIRE S &%

BERMNABEE:

Liabilities for employee benefit

2017 2016
2017 5 20164

HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TAET

comprise:
Long service payments accrual, RERBEEFER 28
classified as non-current liabilities BIERBEE

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is BEEBREBGRL AEBETET
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of BATHKLEREAREETKE
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees who LPEERBOHETEESN —ERX
have completed at least five years of service with the Group. B AYXN e REBHBERTIZEEE
The amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary MEEHeERBFEH  WNRIZE
and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued SERARAZEBAAEERRARED
under the Group's retirement plans that are attributable to ZEHE - AEEVEBEBETMEEMN
contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set aside ABERBTEAREES -

any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

21. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 21. EERIBEE
Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements RAHBE N BB ERIZELTHE
during the current and prior period: BENEFH ZFBHOT

Accelerated
tax
depreciation

OB IR T
HK$'000
TET

As at 1 April 2015 R2015F4 /18 870
Charged for the year F AR 71

As at 31 March 2016 and at 1 April M2016F3 A318H &

2016 R20165F4H 1R 941
Credited for the year FANFTA (63)
As at 31 March 2017 M20179F3 A31H 878

[2 373 B E W H(K AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM
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22. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Shares of HK$0.01 each

Initial authorised share capital
upon incorporation

Increase in authorised shares

JETE

AR EE0.017& TTHI AL 1

P EE AR AL B 2 H186 05 E
(&N

VR TE B An 38 hn

22. B
Number
Notes of shares HK$’000
B =E B 10 8 B FH& T
(a) 38,000,000 380

(a) 9,962,000,000 99,620

At 31 March 2017

R20179F3 A31H

10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid:

Shares of HK$0.01 each

Issue of one ordinary share upon
incorporation

Issue of shares upon the Group
Reorganisation

Capitalisation issue of shares

Issue of shares on placing and
public offer

BEREITRAR
BRREMEO0.01E TR HD
MM AR 3 IT 2 — R
RNEBSMARETRN

BARCBETERNG
EERAFRBEEER NET
Bt

Number
of shares

R &E

HK$'000
FERT

At 31 March 2017

20173 A31H

Notes:

(a

The Company was incorporated on 31 May 2016 in the Cayman
Islands with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. Upon incorporation,
one nil-paid share was allotted and issued.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder dated 21
February 2017, the Company increased its authorised share capital
from HK$380,000 to HK$100,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 9,962,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

(a)
(b) 999,999
(© 449,000,000
(d) 150,000,000
600,000,000
MisE

(@ ARAER2016F5A31ERHAEHE R
A Sz - R TE AR A A 380,0000 7T
/438,000,000 /% & % E H £0.01 8 7T 2
L@k REMAI % BRI
—RARBB R ©

BE B A2017F28218 2 — &
REEBRZR ARARETEBR AL
=% %8 419,962,000,000 % & f% ™ {&0.01
7 7T By 3 3@ A% 5 =0 A1380,00008 TT i &=
100,000,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ

22. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

23.

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Pursuant to the Group Reorganisation, on 17 February 2017, the
Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Winson Group
Hong Kong Limited from Sze's Holdings for the consideration to be
satisfied by (i) the issue and allotment of an aggregate of 999,999
new shares in the Company, credited as fully paid, to Sze's Holdings;
and (i) crediting as fully paid at par the one initial nil-paid subscriber
share transferred to Sze's Holdings.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder dated 23
February 2017, 449,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were
issued at par to the sole shareholder of the Company by way of
capitalisation of HK$4,490,000 from the Company’s share premium
account.

On 16 March 2017, the shares of the Company were listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. 150,000,000 ordinary shares at an offer
price of HK$0.42 each (“Offer Price”) have been issued through
placing and public offer.

RESERVES

Group

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves for the years

ended 31

March 2017 and 2016 are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 76. The
natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as follows:

(a)

Share premium account of the Company represents the
excess of the proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
received over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued.

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Group Reorganisation and represented the difference
between the consideration under the Group
Reorganisation and the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries then acquired.

The share option reserve represents the cumulative
expenses recognised on the granting of share options to
the eligible participants over the vesting period.

22. B @)

MeE - (&)

23.

(b)

(9

BiEEEEA W2017F28178 K
AAAEREREEXIEEEBEES
BARMEHEEITRA REKER
(i) 1) 7 K 438 A% 3% 47 % B2 % & $£999,999
AR B EHARRFRMD - &)
MERZEREE - REVRBERAR
BABRMTZEEAERNABBINA
X FZ e

B¥EBH A2017F28238 2 — &
REAMDAZR FREEINABITZ
449,000,000 BB EEBE AR A
% 17 34 {8 BR & A& {£4,490,000/8 7t 2 /5
XEEERTIARARNE —RE -

R2017F38168 » AR B RHDRE R
Fr &l %4k 1 ° 150,000,000 % & @M% 2
REEESRONET((REE])ER
B R AFEERT-

fit 8

REH

AEBEEZE2017F K2016F3 A31H
LFEsREZSFBE2INETCR
IERAERBHRN - RERBE K
HERERAT

(a)

RABZ RN HEEREBETE]
P B W BR 2 P A5 SRR R AR A R
BERTRNDEENLD -

AEBEEHREE I HEBREAE
£ oHESEEHAR TN RER
BERAMEEMNEARRARELZ
E® -

BRERREABEOMMA R
BeREREBRESRRL 2
SRR
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23. RESERVES (continued) 23. f# 4 @)

The Company ¥ NN

Share
Share Merger option Accumulated
premium reserve reserve loss Total

B

BB &6 e RETE#E st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

P
z
z
c
>
-
~
m
)
=
-
N
(=4
—
N
N
=
~
- - - - - i
TET TERT THET TET TET 5
#

At 1 April 2016 "R20165F481H

Loss for the year and total & A &8 & F R 2
comprehensive income T Utz 4B 58

for the year — — — (10,729)  (10,729)
Issuance of shares REBEHEBET

upon the group & 15 (BT 5 22(b))

reorganisation

(note 22(b)) — (10) — — (10)
Capitalisation issue &AL BT

(note22 (c)) (Bt 3 22(c)) (4,490) — — — (4,490
Share issued under public EiE AR E &

offer and placing A& 21T D

(note 22 (d)) (P £ 22(d)) 61,500 — — — 61,500
Share issue expenses A% 15 317 B 5% (8,833) — = (8,833)
Recognition of share- TSR LA PR (D A BTt

based payment expense {5 7k FA 2 — = 18 = 18

At 31 March 2017 M2017%3 8318 48,177 (10) 18 (10,729) 37,456
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”). The Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to
aid the Company in retaining key and senior employees of

the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is 192,000. No share options
may be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme if

this will result in the limit being exceeded.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees of any member of the Group and any executive

directors of the Company.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall
pay HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration for

the grant.

On 23 February 2017, the Company has authorised to
grant to 6 eligible participants to subscribe for an
aggregate of 192,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. On the same date, the Company has
granted share options to 6 eligible participants to

subscribe for an aggregate of 192,000 shares.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any
particular share option offered under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall be equal to the Offer Price (as

defined in note 22).

24. BT E

()

BXLBBEABRES
2

MR2017E2A4218 XA AIKE
Ky —HERETE((HERARM
BEAERETED -BXRARA
BEMERETS A -BERMDE
BatE HRIYDEEBBARL
AREBAEBEIERSMIES -

EiREE XA S ERER
BN EREREITEmA
BEITHRMEEB ER A192,000
B% o AR B X AR B E AT
REET B I% BB AR K B R
BRI A ERE -

BRERZEERBAKETMMK
B R A Z AT 2 B sk ik B e B A
NARBZERMATES -

EEAREABERER AL S
BhAARAXM1IETEAK
{go

MR2017F2 8238 AR A B &
HeHAEBERLHEETRESF X
ANABEMERETSIREA K
192,000 & 210 « WA B » AR A
Mot A EXSEERNBERE
LARREE A 192,000 B {7 °

HE QMBS ERETSE
TR 2 55 E B E 2 B D
RBEERZEB(TE LW
22) 1% o
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 24. RS El )

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) () BXPHBENBERES

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to exercise the
share options granted during the Option Period under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme in the following manners:

(@) 50% of the share options granted to grantee under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or
after the first date on which dealings in the shares
of the Company commenced on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Date”) to the date immediately before
the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(b)  50% of the share options granted to grantee under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or
after the date falling on the first anniversary of the
Listing Date to the date immediately before the
tenth anniversary of the Listing Date.

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are not transferable and share options not
exercised within the exercise period will lapse and cease
to be of further effect. All the share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall lapse
automatically and not be exercisable (to the extent not
already exercised) on the expiry of the Option Period.

Share options granted prior to the expiration of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme but not yet exercised at that
time shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

gl ()

S s NN GRSl ]
A& ARAR L Z BRESE T
WERMUA TN AITERER
B AR IR B R Q5 S AT R
RAtEIRE 2 B

(@ S50%WREBEBRXAFAESH
BRETSmEARARD
ZHERETRAERARN
RERXTHAGBEE 2 & A
([EmHBD®HZ2EEER
EErTMHBETERFA
Az BHAHARIBE RS 771 &

(b) 50%REERXRRAFHEEM
BREFERARARD
ZEBREANR LTRSS
—ERAFEERRZRE
ERLITTEHETEBSF
B Al Z B E AR BE RS 1T 2 -

BRAFEEMBRESAT
R zERERTAEE R
17150 AP i R 7T {68 2 8 AR A S Ok
METBABEMEN - BRA
MEENEREFIRTREZ
P 6 B8 A HE 5 10 BB A R T FE
B B 8RB M AR ITE AR K
TEERR) -

RERAFREERERESSE
mAT R RS R ARITENBR
BEEEARLRBRBERAFE
ERE R &R TITE -
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 24. BBIRESTE (@)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) BEXPHEBEABERES
&l (@)
The following tables disclose details of movements of TREBRBEAAFEEAE
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option RETEFEE 2B R E
Scheme: 15

Number of share options
BREHAB
Share Granted on Exercised
option 23 February during Expired/Cancelled At 31 March

type 2017 theyear during the year 2017
BRE MN2017F2A8 R2017F
LRl ERY FRITE FRER FZH  3A31A8

1373 B EINFHE AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

Director o=
Ang Ming Wah 3t BH Tranche 1 32,000 — — 32,000
F—#
Tranche 2 32,000 — — 32,000
Bt
Employees E8
In aggregate =i Tranche 1 64,000 — — 64,000
FE—H#t
Tranche 2 64,000 — — 64,000
E
Total “ st 192,000 — — 192,000
Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO B E X QRSB RS
Share Option Scheme are as follows: BOZEREFBOT :

Number of share Exercisable

Share option type Date of grant option granted period Exercise price

BRESR R BH REBREHE TEH TEE

Tranche 1 23 February 2017 96,000 16 March 2017 to HK$0.42
15 March 2027

Eoiif 201752 A23H 96,000 20173 H16HE 0.42% 7T
2027463 H15H

Tranche 2 23 February 2017 96,000 16 March 2018 to HK$0.42
15 March 2027

i 201742 H23H 96,000 201843 H16HE 0.42% 7T

202743 H15H
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i)

Out of the 192,000 outstanding share options (2016: nil),
96,000 share options (2016: nil) were exercisable as at 31
March 2017.

Share options and weighted average exercise price are
summarised as follows for the reporting periods
presented:

2017
2017 &

Weighted
average
exercise

Number of
share

options

BRE MEFH

#E

Outstanding at beginning A 4 #] i 7k 17 f&

of the year —
Granted B 192,000
Exercised BIT{E
Expired/cancelled B &,
Outstanding at end of A4 R H R 1T

192,000

the year

The share options outstanding at 31 March 2017 had
exercise price of HK$0.42 (2016: nil) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 9.9 years (2016: nil).
The weighted average fair value of share options granted
during the year ended 31 March 2017 was HK$0.178 per
share option (2016: nil).

The fair value of the share options at the grant date, were
calculated using the binomial pricing model with different
assumed holding period prior to the optional expected
exercise of the options.

24. BERESTE )

BXABMBREANERES
gl (@)

7 192,00013 # K 17 & B8 % 4
(20164 : &) /1 - 5 96,0007 B&
% # (2016 4F : &) A] 72017 F 3
A31B17fE -

PR ¥R & B 2 8 AR B
FHTEEMALT

2016
20164
Weighted
average
exercise
price

Number of
share
options
BkE TS
TEE H B TEE
HK$ HK$
BT T

price

M2017FE3A31B W RITHE Z
BB A% #E 17 (B 50.427% (2016
Fo\E) HNEFEHFRGBENTF
HiA9.94F (20164 : ) - REE
2017F3A3NHILEFER B 2
RIENINEFHRTFELENE
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; 24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 24. BRESTE )

(%2

© (i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) () BXPHBEBRES

5 £ ()

% The inputs into the model were as follows: ZER 2@ ABENT

9)

= Grant date 23 February 2017 A 201742 A23H

% Number of share options 192,000 B E 192,000

2 Share price HK$0.42 f& 17 1B #% 0.42% 7T

% Risk-free rate 1.91% & F & 1.91%

o Expected volatility 53.95% T8 B R iR 53.95%

E Time-to-maturity 10 years 51| HA B R 104

—

5 The risk-free rate is based on yield rate of the zero 4 [ B K1) 2= 7Y EL A 4F HP R BE AR

S coupon Hong Kong government bonds with durations BHEREUCEBBRRZERER

g similar to the expected lives of the share options. BEEWIRETE -

=

’ﬁ% Expected volatility was determined by using historical T8 B S 08 Jh iE A (0 A 0 B B IR A

g‘; volatility of market comparable companies with similar EHFH AU E RN A E

§ business to the Company within a period similar to the BHEUMTESEALLEATHES

.ETI expected lives of the share options. The expected life used HEETE RBEESEEBZ&EM
in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s st RZERNE R 2 785 F 5
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, SRt A aE A - ITERR B AT
exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations. BRAENTZEMmMELRFE -
The fair value of the share options granted is OEHBREZ2ATFEERAEY
approximately HK$34,000 in aggregate. The Group 34,0007% 7T © # £ 201743 A 31
recognised a total expense of HK$18,000 for the year HIFrEE NEBEGAA AR
ended 31 March 2017 (2016: nil) in relation to the share B AHBREg BRESE T
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme H 2 BE IR A 1 R BT X 4258 18,000

by the Company. BT (20164F : 48) o
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 24. RS El )

(ii) Share Option Scheme (i) BRESTE

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was
conditionally adopted by the sole shareholder (the “Share
Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to the eligible participants of the Group and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

The eligible participants include any employee (full-time or
part-time), director, consultant, adviser, substantial
shareholder, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of the
Group. The basis of eligibility of any participant to the
grant of any option shall be determined by the Board (or
as the case may be, the independent non-executive
directors) from time to time on the basis of his
contribution or potential contribution to the development
and growth of the Group.

The subscription price of a share respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price solely determined by the Board and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the higher of: (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant of the option, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
grant of the option.

MN2017%F28218 B —REAH
IR 4 — T8 B8 AR 4 1 &0 ([ BB A%
HEETED o

BhiEt s ERs RRBRE
FWAE MAEEESERSH
ERHEREIINERARESHAEE
EBaIESE -

EERSEEREAKRERESR
(2B MFE) -BEF FHA
BE--TE2RR 2B A8
BeoftER - RE - FF -BX
BHIRBHEER EF (K
BIYFATES RBERAME)
ATRRREERN2EEHAEH
R NMIERMEH AT BEE R
BRREERBRESBAENE
1% o

RIZBAET SR LT T
BhENROREBEREFTSE R
RETYEMS2EE BETEE
RTF&ERE  OVARBRGR
BhERHBEHWAREXH)
REBXHEBAERERMA RIS
B (i) A& 2 A A ) I B 4 1 P
i BB A A& X BB
FHMERMAFHFHYETE:
R (iii) & 2 B B fn 70 B8 B4 4R
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 24. BBIRFEETEl ()

(i) BREFTE @

(ii) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

273 B R EHFEHK @ILIWIT DONOM DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

For the purpose of calculating the subscription price,
where the Company has been listed on the Stock
Exchange for less than five business days, the issue price
of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange shall
be used as the closing price for any business day fall
within the period before listing.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to
the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
an option is HK$1.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company as
from the adoption date (excluding, for this purpose,
shares issuable upon exercise of options which have been
granted but have lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company) must not in aggregate exceed
10% of all the shares in issue as at the Listing Date.
Therefore, it is expected that the Company may grant
options in respect of up to 60,000,000 shares (or such
numbers of Shares as shall result from a sub-division or a
consolidation of such 60,000,000 Shares from time to
time) to the participants under the Share Option Scheme.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed at
any time by approval of the shareholders in general
meeting provided that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshed limit. Options previously granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled
or lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the refreshed 10% limit.

WA ERBEMS - WARA
REERZPre) EH IR AR B EE
8 AR R B R B S PR 3
TTE®BIER LT AR EMZ
EHMWKMIE-

BHBRENZORMNMELEH
ZHBRBMEEEA)BEARE
MoBREABAERENEZLD
RHESOERBERAAR N
1ATT ©

B 540 A B R R AR 45 B8 IR R AT 2
) N/NICT R S IR R ey
BT REMEBREETER
AETHRMEE LR (Bt
T EREEERLEREER
P 5T &1 5k AR X B A fa] E Ath BB AR A2
FFEERE KRB EREEITE
MAaETHRe) a5
HREmBBEIE FHITRG D
10% At - FBAIA R & A R 1%
EREFSR2EERE SRS
60,000,000 A% B 17 (3K & 7T~ B v
48 s & B 5%60,000,000 A% A% 15
EEHNRMOEE)WERE -

SRt 8910% b IR AT BE B AR
PR RERRARNE EROEERE R
BRBERERET S RAQBFE
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N SHBBHELEH ERE
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SIEEHBERE(REREER
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 24. BR#ETE @) ’%’
c
(ii) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) BREFTE @ i
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be BEML RAREERETSR g
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options AR AR E A B AR AT &I R =
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option MmEARITEN I EREETE ]
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group Al pE BT IR 1 AR B N
at any time shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of RIS BB AR A AR #EIT N
the Company from time to time. No share options shall be I 19 #930% © FAAR & AN A R 4E (A 3
granted under any schemes of the Company (including SE(BEERETD)REER E
the Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the 30% BB eBia Fili30%m R 8 #
limit being exceeded. TSR HBARAE -
The total number of shares issued and which fall to be HERL ABIEFMI121EA M
issued upon exercise of the share options granted under AN BABEERESTE S AE
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option ] EL B AR R 51 B A % AR A
schemes of the Group (including both exercised and BRESNBREBESITELH
outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month RITER B E) ErTFE M EE1T
period up to the date of offer to grant shall not exceed 1% NEBETFETNRDEE 58
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of BARBREBLHR L ABRD T
offer to grant. Any further grant of share options in excess BEAD B9 1% o {E fa] 58 9N % ) R 380
of this 1% limit shall be subject to shareholders’ approval 1% PR A B AR R % 7B AR R
in a general meeting. RIRERRE ESITHE -
In addition, any grant of an option to a Director, chief AN MARRBEE BT
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company (or ABEHTFTERE(RKEMEES
any of their respective close associates) must be approved EMNERBEA)RDEMANER
by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding WY AKLBEIIENTES (T
any independent non-executive Director who is the BREIBEREARANENE
grantee of the option). Where any grant of options to a VIERMTESR )M E WA EE
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive RSB IIERITEE(HEE
director (or any of their respective close associates) will ZENTAEEHE A)KRLE
result in the total number of shares issued and to be MEREMEREHERL R
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to H(REZE) IEEMI121E A B
be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and MR Fut A THEBREBRER
outstanding) to such person under the Share Option | 7 AN N B 0] E At B AR RE AT A
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the BERRGTERNDHNERE
Company in any 12-month period up to and including the (BREETE BFHE kM RT
date of grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the FREBRE)ETEMETES
shares in issue; and having an aggregate value, based on FERITORMEE A HBED
the closing price of the Shares at the date of each grant, BITRMAE0.1%  RIRER MO R
in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share EERLEBBHUTEAENEER
options will be subject to, in addition to the approval of 385,000,000 7T % BN LB
shareholders of the Company in general meeting. RS RN REERRAS
B -
No share option under the Share Option Scheme has been B BE RS M B B IR AT S E R A

granted since its adoption. ‘IR o
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25.

26.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 25. BEERKEF

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the AREEDREBEFB(CREEAED T
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund ZHEPDB T BEEBES SR TA
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed in Hong Kong. The FlIEAESFTE((RESEE]) - =8
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan EestElARBUYURTETAEEN TR
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, HHRENRTE - RIEBBE2TE &
the employer and its employees are each required to make FTRERERENEBZTEHREESE
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant AW ARGS% EX & ARABYRASNE
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of [ 30,0007 JT AT AR BR © 3% 5t 2 A9 4 3%
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately. BIRFER 8 -

The retirement scheme cost recognised in profit or loss REZERONBRARFEIXAELREE
represents contributions paid or payable to the MPF scheme by oa E T EBAE T B Mg E
the Group at rates specified in the rule of the MPF scheme. As ST EIE X MR EMN O TIE - B
at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had no significant 20174 K2016%3 H318 Bk EXXFR
obligation apart from the contributions as stated above and e BRI REB Y B E
there is no forfeited contribution arose upon employees leaving AEE BENEREERLRKET
the retirement benefit scheme and which were available to sl E A XA AR D B R
reduce contributions payable. B BEFK o

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 26. KEMERRE

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had total commitments R20174F R2016F3A31H A& H
under operating leases in respect of non-cancellable operating BRESEHESB LW RIEFHTH
leases for land and buildings to make payment in the future WL HEN R FEAELATE I
years as follows: ik

2017 2016
2017 5 20164F

HK$°000 HK$'000
TRERT TAET

FEEEREBEA

The Group as lessee

Within one year R—F A
Operating lease expenses represent rental payable by the Group KETHERSY ARNEEGRE IFE=E
for staff quarters. The leases are negotiated for a term of one MEFES - HEHTEA1FEER (2016

year (2016: one year) and rental is fixed over the term. FE)RBEHRBHRNAETSE -
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27.

28.

29.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Authorised but not contracted for: EREBRELY:
Purchase of property, plant and

equipment

27.

BEWE BB MR

BEXEE

2017
2017 &

2016
20164
HK$'000
FAT

HK$'000
FER

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, the Actual
Use of the Property does not comply with the permitted use and
is beach of section 25(1) of the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter
123 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for failure to notify the
Buildings Department regarding the change of land use.

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, pursuant to section 40(2) of
the Buildings Ordinance, the maximum exposure of the fine as a
result of the aforesaid matter is approximately HK$100,000.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and fair value risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group's
headquarter, in close co-operation with the directors. The
overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing
the Group's short to medium term cash flows by minimising its
exposure to financial markets.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. It identifies ways
to access financial markets and monitors the Group’s financial
risk exposure. Regular reports are provided to the directors of
the Company.

28.

29.

FAREE

B RRMEI4FTIRE 2D
WERARYEERTINAER B
HRAERLHARMNEERANETF
EMEREBEONNEI1235EEY K
7 58 25(1) 1 »

M20174 KX2016%3A318 B #F &
FEAEPIE40)E AR Ll FIEME
2 5 3 A fx KRR 49 4 100,000 7T ©

Bt %5 R B B 22

AEEBZBRNERELEBRERNE
RERHEAEZHMIAMEEZ R
MRk BERREFEERR -
mBEESER - FEERRAFER

BHERBREERASEANHAE
BOBEBEFENTIESEMAES -
BEEMBRARNEEEREREDER
AEBENTFEHRE R EKAE N
WO EEET S ER

AEBOBRIL IR B B MEE
REEETNcRITA -HYEEBE
ERMTEREEASEMBRBRNT
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 29. B %5 R B B 2 )

(a) Summary of financial assets and liabilities () RENEIWNEMEER
by category BEHE

2017 2016
2017 & 20164

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET

[2 373 B E W H(K AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables: B % fE WS -
Trade receivables B 5 FE W IE 82,087
Deposits and other receivables =& & H th 8 R IE 1,624
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEESEEY 71,416
155,127
Financial liabilities SREE
At amortised cost: T S Pk AN 51 BR
Trade payables B 5 308 12,154 10,829
Accruals, deposits and other BErER ek
payables H b &5 R IE 42,568 33,372
Bank borrowings RITHE 39,643 55,380
94,365
(b) Credit risk (b) EERM
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributed to its trade AEBHEZERBRIELEARE
and other receivables and cash and bank balances. B RHEMEKMZBUALRES R
Management has a credit policy in place and the SRITERTER - T EED R
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an —EZERE ZEZEREIK
ongoing basis. FEREEEEE-
The Group has concentration of credit risk with two R2017F3H318 - AEHBEA
customers with trade receivables of HK$34,792,000 (2016: EhEZERKB WEETPAPHE
two customers of HK$32,817,000) as at 31 March 2017. 5 JE W 5% 18 434,792,000 7T
(20164 : W% & 532,817,000
JT) e
The credit risk for cash and bank balances is considered He RRITEBNEERRA A
negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks BT AAUFHAEESHE
with high quality external credit ratings. EINHXEZETIH BARGFBEE

B ERTT -
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31
March 2017 and 2016 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors
of the Company have closely monitored and reviewed the
recoverability of the financial assets and the directors of
the Company consider such risk is not significant.

The Group's management considers that all the above
financial assets that are not impaired under review are of
good credit quality, including those that are past due.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancement.

29. iR e E B i)
(b) EERE @

R20174 %2016 53 A31H - i
HFEAREBTERSEDRE
REMEEEBFNEM BFE
& ANEERRABLGRE T B
NEMEVNNNZEEENER S
e ARAREREEZERR
ARABESHYEIRTEE R
BEMNTKREWE  RAQXFES
RAEZERBREREZE -

AEBEEERS NEHMEH
ARMENAE LiieMEES A
BEREMNEEER(BECAY
E) e

AEENEREEMRERERY
HE A EEIREETTRER

(c) Liquidity risk (0 "BELRAR
Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be mBEEREKNEREE LR
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial THESRAGEEENETHR

liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect
of settlement of trade and other payables and its financing
obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with bank covenants, to
ensure the Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major banks
and financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

RARM - -AEEERELEERS
LEMENFEREREEEH
MHRBSESRR HINEAER
EREERH-

AEBENBEREREEER
BeBRRHEBERTRENEG R
B - DAREOR N 5 [ 4 45 58 2 19
ReREBEMIBERRETES
MEBESEHNCIORER
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 29. I E R ERE @

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) () "BELRE @

The following tables show the remaining contractual THRABAEECHBERNRS
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the HARMBE TALDNEBR JhE
Group's financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash NAMBRL R (BEXRAEY
flows (including interest payments computed using R Ee (HAFEFR)ERBRE
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at AEHMRTANERFTENF BR
the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can be E)RAEBEAJREBELINHER
required to pay. HHf o

Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year oron More than
amount amount demand one year

BETORER  RIERD

BEE  REAE BER  1ENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#%T F#T F#T F#T

1373 B EINFHE AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

At 31 March 2017 R2017%3A318
Trade payables CE ) ANE S
Accruals, depositsand ~ ESFER S K

other payables Hofth & 15 308
Bank borrowings RITERK

Total contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or on More than
amount amount demand one year
EEEEN:E:) R1ER
REE RIBHETE BEX (K=Y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET TAET
At 31 March 2016 R201653A31H
Trade payables B 5 5B 10,829 10,829 10,829 —
Accruals, depositsand  EETE R e Rk
other payables H & 5108 33,372 33,372 33,372 —
Bank borrowings RITER 55,380 57,381 57,381 —

99,581 101,582 101,582 =
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company considered it is unlikely that the
banks will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company considered that
the bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled payment dates set out in the loan agreements
which are summarised in the table below:

Total
contractual

Carrying undiscounted

amount amount
EHESES:

IREE HARELER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T

At31 March RA2017F
2017 3831H 42,017

At31 March 2016 F
2016 3A318H 55,380 58,581

29. B % & by B B )

(9]

Less than

FREE LSRR @

ERINAEBNITBEAR - ADQ
RAIEZEER R RITTKAENE
ERTMER ARAEFR
A RITERSRE TR
B & R 13 sk P AL AT &I SRR HAE
iR

More than  More than
one year two years

one year or but less than but less than More than

on demand
—FRHIER
ER
HK$'000
FHET

33,321

two years five years five years
—&EpE MERE
BLRAmE BIREF EFULE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET

7,785 11,161 6,314
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from variable rate
bank balances and bank borrowings. Exposure to interest
rate risk exists on those balances subject to floating
interest rate when there are unexpected adverse interest
rate movements. The Group’s policy is to manage its
interest rate risk, working within an agreed framework, to
ensure that there are no unduly exposures to significant
interest rate movements and rates are approximately fixed

when necessary.

A reasonable change in interest rates in the next twelve
months is assessed to result in insignificant changes in the

Group's profit for the year and retained profits.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for bank borrowings at
the end of the year. The analysis is prepared assuming
amounts of these financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the year were outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis points increase or decrease in the prevailing rates
of relevant banks is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible

change in interest rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
for variables rate bank borrowings, with all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the
year would decrease/increase by approximately

HK$166,000 (2016: HK$231,000).

No sensitivity analysis of bank balances of the Group is
presented as all balances carry interest rate below 0.1%.

(e) Fair value risk

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the Group’s financial

statements approximate to their fair values.

B35 [ e B B o)
(d) FI== K

(e)

RSB F R E R R B R IF B A
K BRIRITHERRIRITER -
fie 3R A TROR M B E R R & 8
B BRI REBRAEFENRZS
ERNFHNENESR  AKH
MBEREERBEERAETER
A @ g - DA AR R BRI K
EPHIrexZEaEk LA
BEREREEHMONE -

TEEJrEA?%TﬁK-T-:{IH aRES:)
EEPEERAKERFAN
mfr'J&{%Ea/ﬁflJuﬂfﬁi‘“r“ HE -

HEBE D

T R E 5 AT Ty R F RA IR
TERNFERRET - ZDM
IBRERFREREENZES
BMTEAREFAHARKEEMR
B-mMEBEBABRNBZ2HA
TR b AR IRITIRITA R
A EZ ek BRSO A, - 5E 12
BHFMERIREGEREEEIE
B FE A o

WERITHERNFSHFER F T
FESOMEEZEMEM A 2 2RI
T AREBEFRNHBRBIER
F #5818 hn 49166,000% 7T
(20164 : 231,000/& 7T ) °

HRAAERTESRSEER
0.1% KM 58 - B &2 5 A
KERITERNFREIN -

AV EER

ARBEFRR  AEEMHKE
RARCBIERAZENERE
ENEBABNERERZEAYF
EEE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 25 e A Wit

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EZ201743A31HILFZ
I 4a@.

30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 30. EXEE

The Group’s capital management objectives are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholder and benefits for other
stakeholders, to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital and to support the Group's stability and
growth.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group, to ensure optimal returns to
shareholders.

For capital management purpose, the directors of the Company
regard the total equity presented on the consolidated statement
of financial position as capital.

RITERK

Bank borrowings

AEBENEAEEARARENEE
FERLEHMEN AR R HE i F
SAAETHREREEN g &E
BEARRE HIBEARA R FAE
BoRERER -

AEEEBYTEHREMNREELENRN
R BRAKERRNERNER
VARE LR 43 IR 75 K A (B 2] 4 -

REAERBBEME ARAEER
RAaPBRRKRMENNBERIER

2017 2016
2017 5 20164

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FTAET

39,643

39,643

Total debt wafd
Total equity MR

91,620

EXRBELER

Gearing ratio

0.43
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 31. A A B B BRREK
THE COMPANY

As at
31 March
2017
H2017 &

3A31H
HK$"000
TERT

[2 373 B E W H(K AILIWIT ONOX DNOH SONIATOH NOSNIM

Non-current asset kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN NG oy = - 32
Current asset RBEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEED
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals, deposits and other payables BErER ek
H Ath & A 5138 7,576
Amount due to a subsidiary S —REM B AR RIE 7,419
14,995
Net current assets and net assets RBEEFERTFEE 43,456
EQUITY 5
Share capital A% 2 22 6,000
Reserves B 23 37,456
Total equity B 43,456
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EEEEEN2017F6 A7TEHLERR
7 June 2017 and signed on its behalf by: BHBETHUTRERES
Ng Sing Mui Sze Tan Nei
REMWE i 5 1
Director Director

EF EF
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32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 32. AMiIB ARz RS
Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: WEARGEBWMT

Equity interest
Place of owned by the
incorporation/ Issued ordinary Company
Name of subsidiary operation share capital At 31 March Principal activities
b N

EMRL 2% M3A31H
B A R AR A i B ZTERERE HEHNRE IEEXER
%
2017 2016
2017 20164

>
4
4
c
>
-
=
m
el
o
a
)
=t
N
)
S
L
~
iy
il
#

Directly held:
HERA
Winson Group Hong Kong  BVI US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited
KIBSRBEEBEERAR HEBELHS 1%7T REERKR
Indirectly held:
EZEFAH -
Winson Cleaning Service Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 100 100 Provisions of
Company Limited ("HK") environmental hygiene,
airline catering support
and related services
KIBBERRB AR LR  HE(EE]) 6,000,000 T RERSEHE MZEE
R 3X #5 N AR B IR 7%
Winson Professional Pest HK HK$8,275,000 100 100 Provisions of pest
Control Company Limited management services
BEEEXERBERAR FE 8,275,000 7T REESHBERRS
Wealthy Strong Investment HK HK$6,652,026 100 100 Property holding
Limited
ERKRERRAA HB 6,652,026 7T MERH
None of the subsidiaries of the Company had any debt securities it - /NI i =N T A R =1: B 1=
outstanding at the end of or any time during the reporting NEMEBEETM M AKEEERLKE

periods. % o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
4 755 it 22

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the three years ended 31 March 2017, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report and
the prospectus dated 28 February 2017 issued by the Company is set
out below. The summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Results E$
Revenue I 25

Profit for the year F A Vi )
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets mEE
Total liabilities BEHEE
Total equity W R

REREAFREERRAVERERAR
A)R2017F2 A28 FIB#MBREREN K
EBEE2017FIANBIE=—FAFENZE
BEUREERBBEBMESINOT -HEW
TENCEZTEREN—HD -

2017 PAONIS) 2015
20175 20164 20154

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TAET THAT

467,513 449,758 369,212
8,679 18,814 14,331

195,416 139,366 128,356
103,796 110,610 118,414
91,620 28,756 9,942
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